
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, April 7th, 2015.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 
Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there are no changes to the agenda.


*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF FEBRUARY 3, 2015:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was no March meeting because of a snow storm.
So moved.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated no question.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:
PB 5-08      a.
Letter dated February 17, 2015 from Percy and Barbara Montes requesting the 11th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Radio Estates Subdivision located at the end of Radio Terrace.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we approve Resolution 5-15 in favor of granting this extension.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-99      b.
Letter dated March 20, 2015 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 14th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution 6-15 now but that we are hopeful for a written explanation from the applicant.  Is there anyone here?
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we did discuss this at the work session and somehow we need to communicate to them that we want something in writing and that there needs to be some kind of an appearance here because this is going on forever.  This application started back in 1999 so we’re talking about 15 years at this point.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated we’re voting on approval of this and they will…

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

c.
Letter dated February 11, 2015 from Lili Liu requesting Planning Board approval for a change of use from a computer repair store to a spa for a tenant space located in an existing building at 2120 Crompond Road (Route 202).

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I think the applicant’s looking to come up.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you want to explain to us what has been going on since the last time you were here?

Mr. Timothy Lee stated the neighbor changed their purpose for running the business, the spa on the designated location.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we understand that there are some problems with your plan, or the layout or something.  Do you recall…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this was discussed at the work session and you did submit a brief project narrative but we would also like to see a floor plan of the space; how it’s going to be laid out, what type of equipment is going to be in there with respect to tables, chairs, sinks, places to do the spa treatments as well as more specific project narrative; further explaining beauty enhancement, giving more information than what was in your current project narrative.  It would be an additional project narrative, new floor plan for the space showing the different treatment centers and that would need to come back to staff’s office for us to review prior to come back to the Planning Board.

Mr. Timothy Lee stated so we need to prepare the new narrative for your office and then we will come back again for this hearing right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Timothy Lee stated so that’s it for today for us?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, unless you have any more questions.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was some concern and I was one of the persons who was concerned about the term “beauty enhancement,” exactly what are you doing?  What does that mean exactly?  What services will be rendered under that term “beauty enhancement?”

Mr. Timothy Lee stated I’m interpreting that this my customer and I have to explain what Chris has said now and also after that I will explain what beauty…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Pete mentioned “beauty enhancement” but I just wanted to make sure you understood that what we want as part of that is a specific sense of what services comprise “beauty enhancement.”

Mr. Timothy Lee stated okay. The “beauty enhancement” involves the cleansing of the face and the whole series of the hair for the face and also weight loss.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated make sure that that gets into the narrative okay? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated additional information in the narrative as well as a floor plan showing how the interior space is going to be laid out.  Just for the record, because this is taped, could you just state your name for the record?

Mr. Timothy Lee stated his name.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated thank you.

Mr. Timothy Lee asked that’s it?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes for now.  Did the board have any additional questions or concerns?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just want to add though, the lady there is Lili Liu?

Ms. Lili Liu affirmed that she was Lili Liu.

Mr. Timothy Lee asked when is the next time we’re going to be here?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded call our office, call the planning office at 734-1080 and we’ll explain.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked we have talked on the phone correct?  Have I spoken to you in the past or was it someone else?

Mr. Timothy Lee responded no, I don’t believe…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated call the Planning office, we’ll explain exactly what you need to do.  

Mr. Timothy Lee asked I’m sorry?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated call the Planning office at 734-1080 and we’ll explain to you exactly what you need to do because you have to get the information to staff first, not to the board.  You may be able to get on next month’s agenda but that depends on how quickly you can get the information to us.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the next meeting is May 5th but come over here when you’re done and I’ll give you my card and then that’s our contact information and we can set up a staff meeting.

Mr. Timothy Lee stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that this matter be referred back to staff for the additional information requested from the applicant.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS: 

PB 1-14   a. Application of Hudson National Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Country Club and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a private golf driving range and teaching facility located on an approximately 19.4 acre parcel of property located north of the existing Hudson National Golf Club, south of Hollis Lane, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Hudson National Golf Course Driving Range and Teaching Facility” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated January 5, 2015.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I’m the attorney for Hudson National Golf Course.  With me tonight is our engineer Ralph Mastromonaco and our arborist Scott Cullen.  When we last met with you on February 3rd, we summarized our project and some of the highlights of we had been working on over the preceding months, particularly with respect to the issue of trees and our mitigation plan.  Tonight, we’d like to take you through some significant additions to our mitigation plan since February in the hope that we might obtain your acceptance of the plan tonight so that we might move on, possibly to a public hearing at the next session.  By way of introduction, it’s important to reiterate that your town law affords the board a great deal of discretion to take into account the context of the particular project.  The overall context in this case is that this is a very green project.  It involves almost entirely undisturbed or landscaped open space.  It’s not a shopping center or condominium-type project.  Respectfully, it’s this context that the board must keep in mind when reviewing our mitigation plan and in that regard, the following key facts – again, they are noting just by way of introduction.  First, out of this 19.4 acre site; 6.7 acres or 34% of the site will remain totally undisturbed.  Much of that will be designated as conservation area which will include a public walking trail for which the applicant will dedicate a public easement to connect to the existing trail network.  Of the other 12.7 acres, which will be disturbed to some degree, it’s also important to note that 11.7 of those acres will still be green space when we’re done, not impervious surface.  Over 95% of the entire site will remain as green space.  It’s also important to note that of the 12.7 disturbed acres, with respect to at least 4.1 or one third of those acres, which is densely overgrown with vines currently, the town arborist has stated that he “does not see any reason for tree preservation in this area.”  Indeed, only three protected trees on the entire property which is our three native Dogwoods, are slightly more than 4 inches in diameter will be removed from the disturbed area.  In keeping 95% of the site green, the applicant will actually be preserving 696 regulated trees including 48 trees over 24 inches in diameter and there’s a substantial similar but unknown number of unregulated trees that will be protected as well.  The majority of those saved trees already form a buffer between the site and the abutting parcels to the west which aren’t owned by the applicant.  The trees being removed will have no effect whatsoever on the screening of the proposed use.  The use still won’t be visible from any other adjoining properties.  It also bears noting that most all of the trees being removed are secondary growth.  Historically, there used to be a farm on this property, driveways, other buildings and other uses so this is not a pristine forest that we’re dealing with.  In addition to the new trees and shrubs which we’ll be discussing in a moment the remaining portions of the disturbed area will be almost entirely planted with grass so that only about 1/5 of an acre of the entire 19.4 acre site will consist of the one small building and other impervious surface.  In summary, as we’ll be discussing it in a little more detail now, the applicant has done everything practicable to mitigate the trees being removed which, although numerically large in number are relatively insubstantial in actual nature.  Now I’d like to move onto Mr. Cullen’s letter to the board of March 6th.  That sets forth not only our original mitigation proposal which we summarized to you at the February meeting but also outlines the significant manner in which we’ve enhanced that proposal since our meeting with town staff on February 25th.  We’ve summarized that augmented proposal in addendum ‘C’ to Mr. Cullen’s March 6th letter which we can display for you now, we are displaying for you now, and he’ll point out the points that I’m making orally, visually to ease your understanding of them.  We’re going to get into a little math now which is not normally my forte but I think we can handle it.  To start with we agree with staff that for purposes of mitigation analysis, the initial number of trees to be considered based on the initial general standard in your code of one new tree per one thousand square feet of disturbed area would be 556 trees, that’s our starting point.  We then subtracted from that area to be disturbed the 4.128 acres where the trees are already severely compromised by invasive vines which your arborist opined, is not an area worthy of any tree preservation.  That effectively saves or credits us with 180 trees against the initial 556 figure so that reduces the trees to be replaced at that point to 376 trees.  Then, as we discussed with you in our original proposal in February, we would first mitigate that 376 tree figure in three ways: 1) we’ll plant 100 new trees and that reduces the figure to be replaced to 276.  2) We’ll remediate the vines on an area of 0.846 acres which will ensure the survival of 34 additional trees, 5 of which are greater than 24 inches in diameter and that will also give us more area to plant the new trees and those 34 saved trees will reduce the replacement figure further to 242 trees.  3) We’ll plant 1,000 new shrubs but as agreed with staff, very conservatively take a credit at a rate of only 10 shrubs per tree which reduces the required trees to be replaced by another 100 for those 1,000 and that brings us down to 142 trees to be replaced.  Then, as indicated in Mr. Cullen’s March 6th letter, we’ve now added to our three prior components from February a number of other significant measures.  First, we’ll add 250 more small trees but once again, as agreed with staff, will be applying a very conservative ratio of 10 to 1 so we’ll take a credit of only 25 replacement trees; brings us down to 117 trees.  Then, with respect to those remaining trees, using the most generous values utilized by adjoining municipalities, we’ve agreed with staff to assess the trees at a value of $300 per tree which would mean that the 117 trees, which we’ve not yet accounted for and which we don’t have room or ability to plant on our site that’s before you, those 117 would amount to $35,100 in value.  How do we deal with that?  with respect to that remaining $35,100 worth of trees, we’re proposing to take a credit of merely $20,100 which equates to 67 trees for what is easily over a million dollars of tree preservation and other landscaping measures that we’re taking on the property which we’ll be added to the site and that one million dollar’s worth of efforts consists of the following 8 items for your consideration: 1) some 12 acres of grass which, like the shrubs, constitutes “other vegetation” which your code requires be considered on this permit application and that’s all of course green impervious surface and that’s going to cost the applicant about $420,000 to install.  2) Permitted irrigation system for the grass at a cost of some $350,000.  3) A temporary irrigation system for all the new plantings at a cost to be determined.  4) Deer fencing and other repellant treatments for the new plantings at a cost to be determined.  5) 366 acres of conservation easement out of the 6.7 undisturbed acre area which of course will help preserve trees.  6) Dedication of a new trail with a public easement which will of course enable the public enjoyment of the trees.  Two new items: 7) which is significant, since the last meeting we’ve added a substantial invasive kiwi vine eradication program on the site in tandem and cooperation with the Saw Mill River Audubon and Mr. Cullen will take you through that a little bit more in a minute and of course that’s intended to have a substantial preservation effect for the trees.  8) Also since the last meeting and also in cooperation with the Audubon we’re providing access over our property for kiwi vine eradication by the Audubon over its property, again to save and preserve trees on their adjoining parcels that they have stewardship over.  Frankly, and in all honestly, we think we should be reasonably entitled to a lot more than a mere $20,100 credit or the equivalent of 67 trees toward the remaining 117 trees or $35,100 worth of trees but having applied that proposed $20,100 credit that brings us down to a deficit of $15,000 or 50 trees.  Finally, to address that, we’ve doubled our proposed voluntary cash contribution to the town, at the last meeting, from $7,500 up to $15,000.  Alternatively, we’ll plant the equivalent in trees which is 50 trees on our adjoining golf course property, at the board’s option.  We would submit that this is a very generous proposal.  We’ve worked very hard on it over a number of months now in consultation with staff to achieve what would in effect be a 0 tree deficit based on your code and based on what we’ve proposed tonight.  We would again ask that you consider it seriously and accept it tonight so that we could move on at long last with other items for the board and a public hearing, but before you get to that I’d like to turn the floor over for a little bit to Mr. Scott Cullen our arborist who will take you through some of the substance of what I’ve been talking about and answer any technical questions of course.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated before you start, and we can do it after he speaks but I do want to get a sense from you guys about where the negotiations stand on this for one thing, because there’s just a lot of numbers being thrown at us right now.  The other point though is you keep leaning on the vine area is one that concerns me a lot.  I don’t see taking credit for that as being appropriate or at least not taking a full credit for that, or what you’re trying to take.  One of the things you keep leaning on, Bartlett’s report which said the tree preservation not required but you have to understand that the only thing he was addressing is whether the trees needed to be preserved there not what the mitigation should be.

Mr. Bob Davis responded I understand that but I don’t think you can take one out of context.  There’s a number of discretionary components to your code, one of which has to do with the nature of the trees affected and I can let Mr. Cullen speak a little more to this but the fact of the matter is that the trees in that area are more or less going to die anyway so in terms of – there’s two different vined areas: one area is the area he’s referring to of the 4.1 acres which says, as you know, that the trees there aren’t worth being preserved, the other is the area that we’re actually restoring trees that otherwise would die.  In terms of the credit, if you’d like for just a moment, I’m sure staff will speak but Mr. Vergano had a compromise proposal for that which I could address briefly if you’d like and that’ll bring us where the negotiations are as you requested.  In his memo of March 12th, 2015 which was by an email where he talked about and responded to Mr. Cullen’s letter of March 6th and he said in his note, he mentioned that the intent of it was to keep the negotiations going.  He disagreed with us only in three areas: a two relatively minor, one not so minor, but all of which are surmountable I think.  Number one he said apropos of your question, the staff wants to credit us for only 50% of the vined area, of the 4.1 acres and that would, in essence, credit us with only 90 of the 180 trees we had taken credit for.  That adds back a deficit of 90 trees.  Secondly, he said the staff likewise only wants to credit us on a 50% basis for that area where we’re actually de-vining so that would credit us for only 18 of the 34 trees to be saved.  That would add back a deficit of 16 trees.  Under his analysis, that brings us back up to 106 and then thirdly, he said that staff doesn’t want to give us any credit whatsoever for the 12 acres of grass and all of those other eight items that I outlined to you and that would effectively eliminate our $20,100 or 67 tree credit, so you add those 67 trees back and Mr. Vergano versus our 0 deficit came up, and staff came up to 173 tree deficit.  Actually we were quite surprised by the memo because we thought we did, from our prior meetings with staff, we thought we had a consensus that we should have a 100% for the two areas in question.  That’s not to say we’re not willing to consider a compromise of that.  Thirdly, on the third item, in not giving us any credit for all of those measures which I think are pretty substantial, the Audubon program and everything else.  It was always our understanding that while staff certainly said they didn’t want to give us a full credit for that and we haven’t proposed one, they did say, I thought, that we’d be entitled to some credit not 0 credit.  Those are the only three areas where, according to Mr. Vergano and the staff’s memo, that they have some disagreement with us.  In two instances it’s a 50% credit versus a 100% which lends itself to some compromise we can talk about.  The third area not giving us any credit; that seems a little unreasonable given the relatively minimal credit that we had taken, but again, it’s not necessarily etched in stone, we’re willing to hear the board’s comments and see if we can come to some agreement.  
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I’ve expressed to Mr. Vergano that I was willing to compromise on the vine area between 100% and 50% so at the 75% level.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we’ve considered that and I can take you through what that analysis would be if you’d like. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked are you guys open to that?

Mr. Bob Davis responded yes, I think so.  I’ve done that analysis for you if you’d like to hear how that comes out, just to cut to the chase.  With respect to staff’s three points, we’d be willing to split the difference and take a 75% credit for the vine infested area.  That would result in a credit back of 45 trees or total credit out of 135 out of 180 in that area.  That would leave us with a deficit of 45 trees.  Number two, again split the difference as you suggested with a 75% credit for the devined trees.  That would credit us back 8 trees for a total of 26 out of 34 trees.  That would leave us with a deficit of 8 more trees.  That would bring us up to a 53 tree deficit for those two items.  And then what we’d be willing to do with respect to the $20,100 credit, we’d suggest the same thing a 50% credit for all of those efforts which we indicated worth more than a million dollars.  That would credit us back 34 trees out of the 67, leave a deficit of 33.  You add that deficit to the others and you have a deficit of 86 trees which is the compromise of Mr. Vergano’s 173 trees.  If you take that 87 tree now deficit, which at $300 a tree is worth $26,100 and you combine it with the payment we already agreed to with staff that he noted in his analysis of $15,000 or 50 trees, that brings us up to a compromised proposal which I would say is more than fair of either paying the town a voluntary payment of $41,100 which is the $15,000 plus the $26,100 or planting a total of 137 trees which is the 50 trees plus the 86 trees.  We would do any combination thereof.  It would be pay $41,100, plant 137 trees on the adjoining golf course property or any combination that the board would like to see.  I think that’s a pretty generous proposal and brings us to a compromise pretty quickly on that too so we might move on. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that sounds better to me than what we had.  I think the third point is one, Ed, you may still have concerns with, is that right?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, I think it makes sense.  It’s not my call.  I’m just here to advise the board of course.  I do want to remind the board that 1,200 trees are being removed and according to the literal interpretation of our code that has to be replaced at 1 tree per thousand square feet of lot area; that would be 855 trees.  We’ve agreed to reduce that to just disturbed area which brings it down to 550 trees.  It’s already a pretty big concession.

Mr. Bob Davis stated on the other hand, we’re doing an awful lot here.  If you compare this, as Mr. Cullen can take you through it, he had it in his letter, if you compare this to a situation where all trees are removed, someone doing that would actually be better off than us and they wouldn’t be preserving 696 regulated trees and to take $10,000 worth of credit for the 12 acres of grass and everything else that we’re doing is a very minimal and fair concession to make.  Your code, quite frankly as we discussed at the last meeting is not so definitive in what it requires as respectfully Mr. Vergano stated.  It starts off that whole section about the one tree per a thousand square feet by saying “if applicable.”  It has other provisions that say the Planning Board “may” require the planting of trees.  It specifically says that the Planning Board should take into consideration other vegetation and even under your own landscaping coverage law, shrubs and ground cover like grass are included in that.  I think it’s a very, being that we’ve immediately come to you and said, in good faith, we’ve done our homework, we’ve agreed to compromise as was suggested, I think that’s a relatively minor remaining compromise to make.  It’s a $41,000 payment or a 137 more trees on the adjoining property and this is very much an open space project.  I think it’s a fair proposal.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that 137 trees on the adjoining property is that hard and fast – 137 trees over there on the adjoining property…

Mr. Bob Davis asked what would you like to know about that?  Is that where it would be you mean?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, for sure it would definitely be there or like we split them between the two or we put them all in one area.

Mr. Bob Davis responded what we’ve done, and Mr. Cullen can speak a little more to this, given the nature of our property and how they’ll be over 6 and 2/3 acres undisturbed, we only have so much viable room on the 19.4 acres where we could plant trees that would survive.  On some of the more steeply sloped areas don’t lend themselves to a full size tree either which is why we proposed some shrubs and small trees but if you may recall, the Zoning Board whom we went before, before coming to you properly found that this – for purposes of your zoning code, this is all one site because this is all going to be used for one use. There’s only one access to the site, the driving range, even though it’s located in your town and not in Croton which actually is in your town as well even though it’s a separate municipality.  It’s all one site so what we would be proposing because it’s the only place we can plant them, if you don’t want a cash payment of $41,100 or some portion of that, the equivalent would be the 137 trees and we would plant that in consultation with your arborist on the adjoining golf course property.  We would try to do as much as possible very near this site but it would remain to be seen how many we could do actually right next to the site as opposed to other places.  It would be either the payment, the planting of those trees or some combination if you wanted a lesser payment, we would plant more trees.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it’s an ‘and/or’ on the $41,100 or the 137 trees, either/or?

Mr. Bob Davis responded that’s what we’re proposing to give some more flexibility in that regard.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked where on this map would these trees be planted?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded the 100 3-inch trees that we’ve proposed would be planted in area ‘A’ which is the green cross hatching, that’s undisturbed.  The problem is some of that is viney and that’s where we would be eradicating the vines, mostly on the upper, right hand portion of that above the blue-dashed line.  We don’t know exactly how much plantings space there’s going to be in there because we don’t know what’s under the vines.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked can you show us where on the site, is it where we entered?  Is it up top?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded if you see, when we took the walk around, we started at the upper right, at hole 3, we drove along the edge with the carts and we started up there and then we left there and came down to hole 2.  Chris if you can scroll up.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where did we enter the site on the Cortlandt side?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded just about where that yellow area that’s marked ‘C’ joins the black path that’s not yet built…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we also entered from the fairway at some point, didn’t we? That’s where you thought there was the one or two specimen trees that were really small in diameter.
Mr. Scott Cullen asked did we poke in there off that…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, up here somewhere.

Mr. Scott Cullen stated when we did most of the walk it was sort of in the – right there where you’re pointing with the cursor and that happens to be the area where there was a very steep slope and I believe about, was it six tenths of an acre that we backed out that we’re not going to disturb – was in that area.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what are the plans for the original driving range?  Is that where the reforestation is planned for the 137 proposed trees?

Mr. Bob Davis responded not necessarily.  There’s been no determination, at least as of recently, as to how that would be used.  As you know from our original submission, that area’s substandard for a driving range in a number of ways which is why the club wants to do this way.  What we were hoping to do was plant as many trees as we could near this site, the 19.4 acres and then plant the other trees in suitable areas where they’d survive.  We’re somewhat open to that.  We do have the club’s chief of landscaping here tonight too and he can shed some light on where trees could be planted, along with Mr. Cullen if you want further information.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I know there has been interest though in what’s happening to the original driving range if that’s going to remain open or whether they’re planning on doing something else with that just to connect all the dots.

Mr. Bob Davis responded there are no plans at present.  That of course it won’t be used as a two different driving ranges. 

Mr. Scott Cullen stated I think we can ask Mr. Oliver if there’s anything he can comment on but I’d like to answer the questions that you’ve posed before we lose them.  The 100 3-inch trees would be planted in that area ‘A’ the green cross area.  The 1,000 shrubs would be planted in the two areas labeled ‘B’ for boy, the red area there which is quite steeply sloped and that area there that’s in yellow with ‘B’.  Those 1,000 shrubs were originally going to be included in the rest in area ‘C’ which is behind the tees and in order to allow us to plant the additional 250 small trees in area ‘C’, the density of the shrubs will be increased in the two areas ‘B’.  With that additional planting of the 250 small trees, the tree planting, the tree and shrub planting on this 19 acre site is now maximized, that’s it.  We can’t plant anymore there and an arboriculturally sound fashion.  With your approval we might shift some of those to the immediately surrounding areas if it would be better for the trees on the long term performance of the site.  So, to answer Mrs. Taylor’s question, all of the additional trees, Bob was that number 147?  Either the $41,000 credit or those 137 trees would be planted off the 19 acre site.  We’re maxed out as it is.  We may need to shift some of that off.  Some of those would go into the area ‘F’ on the lower left where the kiwi vine eradication will be.  There may be other areas as close as possible to this site where we’d be offsetting any environmental impact of the tree removal in area ‘D’.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the vine eradication is a grant application that you’re partnering with the Saw Mill River Audubon Society? 
Mr. Scott Cullen responded there is and I think I can answer that better if we go through the program then I can ask Mr. Oliver to come up and answer any of the questions that he may be able to address, but yes, the Saw Mill River Audubon has received about a $9,500 grant from DEC to do the vine eradication on their property, which I believe is in area ‘G’ for George.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated okay.

Mr. Peter Daly asked what sort of shrubs are you planning on planting?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded all native, as much as we can.  The town’s arborist thought Forsythia might be nice in the mix because the deer don’t bother them but that’s not native and I’d like to stay with natives, mostly deciduous because the deer won’t bother them as much as they would the evergreens, may try to work in some Mountain Laurel, Kalmia, maybe some American Holly.  The deer will eat the Kalmia but maybe not if it’s mixed in with the other.  They’re more likely to leave the American Holly alone but it will be a native mix which will be good for wildlife.  We’re going to try and things with fruits and berries.  They’re good for the small animals and the birds.
Mr. Peter Daly responded that’s good.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked if you don’t mind, back to that grant, so tell me again what you guys are adding to that?

Mr. Scott Cullen asked Brian could you come up and Chris could I ask you to go ahead to just go ahead some slides.  I don’t remember the number.  It might be 7.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked within this report?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded that’s it.  That slide.  Mr. Oliver can tell you a little bit better than I what the program is going to entail.  He can explain to you about what hardy kiwi is and where the areas are.

Mr. Brian Oliver stated we were reached by Caroline Lamb of the Saw Mill River Audubon and they have found hardy kiwi which is very similar to Asian Bittersweet in terms of its invasiveness and they have located some pretty good stands on their property which is the Britain Brook Sanctuary.  They have also found some on the golf course property and this 19.4 acre parcel.  What they have asked us to do is to control the hardy kiwi on our property in conjunction with the efforts that they are going through to eradicate the hardy kiwi on their property.  It’s mainly going to be cut down and a round up will be applied to the base of these hardy kiwi vines.  We’ve also allowed Tom from Trillium.  Tom Louis is the project manager with Trillium Services that they have experienced in eradicating this vine.  We’re also going to allow them access through our property, access to equipment, golf carts to make their job a little easier.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so that has not been in the discussions that you’ve had with the town right?  This is something new you said?

Mr. Brian Oliver responded this is new, correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and then you mentioned a credit for that right?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we lumped that, we added that among the eight items that enumerated with the grass irrigation and everything else.  That’s new tonight.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and did you put it – I’m sorry if you did, I didn’t take it down.  Did you put a monetary value on that?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we didn’t.  We don’t know how to value that but clearly it will preserve trees that wouldn’t otherwise be preserved.  

Mr. Scott Cullen asked Mr. Rothfeder did that answer all your questions about the kiwi?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded yes.

Mr. Scott Cullen stated thank you.  Chris if you could go back to slide 2.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked when you say “slide 2” page 2 within this document?

Mr. Scott Cullen stated Mr. Rothfeder had asked me on February 3rd whether he thought our proposal satisfied the code and at that time I deferred to Mr. Davis to discuss the law and the code.  Subsequent to that, Mr. Davis and I looked at the code a lot.  He explained to me what the code means and as Mr. Davis said, there are many parts of your code that our intention with that specific requirement of one tree per thousand square feet.  There were words like “where applicable” and “you may consider” and “you may require”.  For me, the most significant part of the code is 283-7a-7: “the property owner will replant replacement trees of a similar species or add other vegetation to offset the negative effects of the tree removal to the satisfaction of the approving authority” which is you.  Chris if you could go to the next slide please.  “Other vegetation” or “vegetation” are not defined in chapter 283 or elsewhere in the code.  Chapter 283-2 says that “words and phrases used in this chapter that are not specifically defined in this section shall be interpreted so as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this chapter its most reasonable application.”  Clearly “grass” is “other vegetation” and I’ll walk you through that now.  Chris if you could go back to slide 4, that’s the site plan.  We’re you all clear on the various areas of the site and where we’re going to replant?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think reasonably so.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated 137 trees aren’t specified as [inaudible] but you’ll have room for those basically right now.

Mr. Scott Cullen responded there’s not room for any additional planting…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated where, anywhere on the site or anywhere in the town?  What is the…

Mr. Scott Cullen responded we will possibly have room for some at area ‘F’ on the lower left which is where Ryan and Trillium will be eradicating the kiwi vines.  The others are right now not specified.  We’d be happy to look at that more closely with your arborist and with Ryan.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked do they have to be on this property I guess is the question?  Do they need to be on this property?  

Mr. Scott Cullen responded Mr. Davis can address that.

Mr. Bob Davis responded when you say do they have to be on…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the confines of this property.

Mr. Bob Davis stated you mean the 19.4 acre property?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes.

Mr. Bob Davis stated that was the point we were making before.  First of all, of course again, we gave an option of paying cash and not planting the trees anywhere, the $41,000, but secondly, we had a proceeding before the Zoning Board with respect to certain bulk requirements of your code that we aren’t discussing tonight but in terms of the size of the acreage for a country club use, the frontage on a road and so forth.  Basically, the Zoning Board rendered a determination last fall that this site and the golf club are all one site for purposes of your zoning and for purposes of the use.  It’s all one use and it should be viewed that way.  We have the other site is 260 acres, so it gives us a lot of flexibility.  Your code talks about on-site remediation but it really doesn’t anticipate the situation that we have here where we have one effectively one large piece of property.  One of the things the zoning code recommended to your board, which we agreed to, was if and when you finally approve our project one of the conditions of approval will be that we, by deed, merge the piece in Cortlandt and the piece in Croton to be, not only one zoning lot, but one deed lot.  They will be legally merged as a condition of approval if you follow the recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals that we agreed to.  That’s how we came up with the concept…
Mr. John Klarl stated it’s a condition, not a recommendation, the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Bob Davis responded yes, it was a condition.  The condition was their recommendation to the Planning Board.

Mr. John Klarl stated it was a condition that it had be done.

Mr. Bob Davis stated upon Planning Board approval. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but they are planting 100 trees on this site, so it’s the 137 that they are claiming they can’t fit on this 19 acres. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the 19 acres but on the entire property the plan is to put them somewhere on the entire property. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated but the 100 of them would be in area ‘A’ where the vine eradication…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated those are the 100 – that’s not in the 137.

Mr. Scott Cullen stated I’ll back up for the entire board that as part of our reforestation plan required under the code, we would be planting 100 3-inch trees in area ‘A’ unless we find that they just don’t fit, it’s not healthy for those trees and then we might slide those, with your approval, onto the rest of the site, the existing golf course, the other 260 acres but as close as we can, as close as practicable to the disturbed area so it’s offsetting the impact of that.  The 137 trees would be in addition to that, either 137 trees or the $41,000 contribution.  With your approval we would put some of them or all of them as close as possible to this site, to the 19-acre site to offset any negative environmental impact.  

Mr. Bob Davis stated and also, to be clear, in addition to the 100 new trees on the 19.4 acres, that’s also where the 1,000 shrubs will go and also where the 250 small trees will go.  In effect, there’s 1,350 plantings on the 19.4 acres.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated aside from those few that are going to go into ‘F’ we don’t know where the rest of the 137 are going to be placed on the property.

Mr. Scott Cullen responded there’s no specific plan at this time and we can develop that with the town’s arborist and Mr. Ryan and if you preferred that number I’ll speak for Mr. Davis that, that number could be split, if we planted some there and some was cash contribution to you to plant on someplace else.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that will be up to staff if they want to take that as cash or not.  I just feel uncomfortable, if we’re just going to decide on 137 extra trees, I just feel uncomfortable not knowing where they’re going to be.  If we’re going to take the cash for them, well that’s different.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we wanted to come to a conclusion with you tonight as to how many extra trees we’d be planting and then we’d be more than happy to plant them, as Mr. Cullen said, in consultation with your arborist but we didn’t know whether the board – we had some indication that the town may prefer the cash as opposed to the trees or maybe there’ll be some combination.  We couldn’t make a plan until we’d come to a conclusion as to how you want to address the remaining compromised tree deficit if you will with Mr. Vergano’s memo which now would be 87 trees in our proposal or a total of the 137.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the 137 – you’re right, we haven’t agreed upon on that yet, and that’s mostly based with, and I agree with Ed’s point on this, that’s mostly based on the non-tree environmental mitigation or a lot of it is there…  

Mr. Scott Cullen stated the only thing we really have in slight disagreement is to give any credit for the non-tree mitigation if you want to call it that, although a lot of it is related to trees…
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and I think we’re giving a little too much credit for that at this point is my feeling.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one other somewhat minor detail is those trees will be planted in the Village of Croton.  It wouldn’t necessarily be our arborist.  We’d have to coordinate that planting with the Village I think.

Mr. Bob Davis stated they don’t really have any approval authority over where we plant.  We can plant as many trees as we want on the golf course.  We wouldn’t get involved with the Village of Croton on that.  Again, to address that issue, we’ve offered you the cash equivalent which clearly wouldn’t go to the Village of Croton, it would go to the Town of Cortlandt and they could do whatever they please with it.  Hopefully they would plant trees with it. 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated seems like we’re heading in the right direction.  My recommendation would be to refer this back to staff for some more discussions and…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it hasn’t been discussed really yet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated some of this is new.  If in fact you can’t plant 137 trees outside of this 19-acre piece…

Mr. Bob Davis stated we can do that…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are you sure there’s enough – the area outside of this site, of the golf course that there’s enough area for the planting…

Mr. Bob Davis stated we have 260 acres.  We have plenty of places to plant 137 trees and in fact, I’m not sure exactly how many but having walked the site and having discussed it with Mr. Cullen as he pointed out, a great many of them can be planted on, if not all of them, can be planted on the perimeter of this 19.4 acres. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what were the 250 small trees you were referring to?

Mr. Bob Davis asked excuse me?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the 250 small trees you mentioned?

Mr. Bob Davis asked what was the question?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded since the January proposal when we were last before you, I was able to reexamine the plan and put in an additional 250 small trees and they’re small maturing trees.  They would be planted in area ‘C’ on that slope.

Mr. Bob Davis stated that’s where some of the original 1,000 shrubs were but we relocated them so we could add the 250 additional plantings.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so ‘C’ has 250 small trees, ‘B’ has a 1,000 shrubs and area ‘A’ will have somewhere up to 137 trees…

Mr. Scott Cullen responded no, that’s where the 100 trees that are in the proposal, in our reforestation plan…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I was going to say up to 137 if you can fit them but you’re saying…

Mr. Scott Cullen stated no, I’m sorry Mr. Kessler, there are – in the original reforestation program there were 100 3-inch trees and those would go in area ‘A’, as many of them as can be fit there in arboriculturally sound fashion.  In addition, the 250 small trees in area ‘C’, in addition the 1,000 shrubs in the two areas labeled ‘B’ for boy.  The 137 trees would be a deficit, if we agree that that’s the number, after the reforestation program and those would go off the 19 acres somewhere else on the 260 acres.  We’d try and keep them as close as possible to the disturbed area or they would be the $41,000 cash credit or some combination that works for the board.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated you keep mentioning as close as possible to the site, is that because of 283a-7 that where you’re looking to offset the negative effects of the tree removal?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded yes, generally.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and that’s important.

Mr. Scott Cullen stated we would think that that’s important in your mind and we would try and not plant them far away…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right but I think that’s the very reason why other vegetation probably doesn’t include grass because how does that really offset the tree removal?  If it’s that important I don’t think…

Mr. Scott Cullen stated well those are two separate items…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I think they’re the same offset that you’re looking…

Mr. Scott Cullen stated they are but if you – the 137 tree deficit would be before those other contributions for other non-tree mitigation or reforestation, however you choose to word it.  Grass clearly is “other vegetation”.  Your code doesn’t define it and your code says where it’s not defined it should be interpreted in ordinary usage.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, but I think you still have to read it in context with where it says “to offset the negative effects of the tree removal.”

Mr. Scott Cullen stated I will try to address that. I’ll explain a few things about the grass: first, this is a pervious surface.  It’s not impervious like pavement or a building.  When I was getting in the car I picked this up alongside the driveway.  This is blacktop.  This is impervious.  This is not grass.  They shouldn’t be treated the same.  Second, unlike a grassy park or a meadow, a golf course needs to drain quickly so a particularly permeable soil profile is created underneath that grass, it drains better than just a meadow and Mr. Oliver can address that for you if you need to.  Third, in addition to this comparison of pervious/impervious drainage versus run-off, there’s a local climate effect: grass does not absorb heat like a dark paving area or a roof surface and does not create an urban heat island effect.  Fourth, grass is not just a physical surface to be contrasted to the blacktop or the surface of a building.  In terms of environmental impacts including the carbon footprint, which was important to CAC, the comparison must go beyond the surface type and consider the associated use.  If this same acreage was developed as a retail or industrial use, there would be a much larger carbon budget in the initial development than will be required to put in this grass.  In operation, a building would be illuminated and heated or air-conditioned 365 days a year.  It’s not going to be necessary for this grass.  If there were foot stores or restaurants in this development they would require energy for refrigeration and/or cooking.  We’re not going to have that.  In operation of a property of this size would have hundreds of paved parking spaces, perhaps generating thousands of car trips a day; we’re not going to do that.  Trucks would be delivering goods to the development.  All of this with the attendant air quality and traffic effects and as all those tires wear away they would deposit themselves initially on the pavement, little particles, and that would wind up in run-off; we’re not going to have that.  In operation, the parking lot and circulation lanes would be illuminated requiring electricity and light pollution; we’re not going to create that.  Fifth, on the traffic issue, development of this driving range will not create additional traffic or trips to Hudson National.  This is an upgraded amenity for existing club membership.  That’s what the grass is.  The grass isn’t just the plain contrast between blacktop and grass it’s what would the associated uses have as a negative environmental impact and we’re not the same as a retailer or commercial development. 
Mr. Jim Creighton stated I hear your argument.  I don’t think I’m close to agreeing with your carbon assessment of taking out trees and whether grass matches but I hear what you’re saying.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I’d just like to add one component.  We’re not asking for a full credit against the tree deficit that Mr. Vergano came up with for the grass.  We listed eight components that included 12 acres of grass which will cost us $420,000.  We listed eight components that we requested credit of $20,000 or 67 trees for.  It’s not a huge insurmountable situation and we offered by way of compromise, yet again to Mr. Vergano’s memo, to take only $10,000 worth of credit, 30 some odd trees; not only for the 12 acres of grass but for everything else we’re doing in preservation areas including the kiwi vine eradication program on our parcels and the other parcels.  It’s really a relatively small issue that we’re talking about here.  We just think that the minimum credit that we’ve asked, particularly when we’ve agreed to compromise it by 50%, we shouldn’t really spend a lot of time on it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we’ve compromised a lot on the vines though quite a bit.  So, I think it’s important that we don’t compare apples and oranges and keep bringing in other environmental mitigation when we’re really talking about the trees and the shrubs.  I think that’s something you guys could probably work out but my feeling would be that we’ve got to get a little bit more from that and not include the environmental mitigation.  
Mr. Bob Davis stated let me not paraphrase for you just so I can understand.  What you’re saying is you’re prepared to go along with the 75% credit for the two vined areas.  You don’t wish to give any credit for any of the other things at all?
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded I think you and Ed should work that out but I think we should get more than we are getting under the proposed – more than 137 at this point.

Mr. Peter Daly stated and certainly not grass, grass is essentially not biodiversed.  

Mr. Bob Davis stated the maximum if you eliminated that, just so you know the magnitude of what we’re talking about, if you eliminated – if you gave the 75% credit for the two items and you eliminated any credit for anything else, that would be reducing the deficit of Mr. Vergano’s 173 by 53 trees; the 45 and 8 of the vined areas, that would bring us down to 120 trees in his deficit, 173 minus 53 gives you the 120 and then we already we’re proposing – and that’s worth 120 trees is worth $36,000 and if you added that to the $15,000 or the other 50 trees, that would make a payment of $51,000 or 170 trees total or some combination.  That’s the maximum we’re talking about here.  We’re not real far apart on it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated listen, I think that we need to sort of wrap this up at this particular time.

Mr. Bob Davis stated mercifully.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I didn’t want to say that but we need to send this back to staff.  You guys can talk about it and hopefully we’ll arrive at some compromise, something that’s satisfactory for both.

Mr. Bob Davis stated well we’re almost there.  We’re more than 90% there I would say.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I think so.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do want to just bring up one other thing, we received a letter from the CAC and, you may have received it yourself…

Mr. Bob Davis stated I think we did.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so there is some sense that, and some of this came from the board, there’s a bit of concern about what happens, what kind of effect on the environment around the golf course would happen when we take away 1,200 trees and so we are looking into probably sending out our consultant to take a look in terms of biodiversity concerns.  You just need to know that that was something we discussed at the work session.  
Mr. Bob Davis stated we think this is pretty, given everything we’ve talked about tonight, this project will have a minimal effect on the environment or biodiversity.  You’ll recall that it’s surrounded – it’s got the golf course on one side already.  It’s got the nature preserves and the undeveloped property on the other side.  We think it’s pretty routine in terms of biodiversity.  There aren’t any endangered species there or anything but we’re going to handle that, I believe, by way of our wetlands consultant is going to be taking a look at that.  Actually, we’ve drafted the biodiversity study.  We have to review it and we’ll be submitting it shortly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that would be in the context of Steve Moreno and Steve Coleman dealing with the wetlands.

Mr. Bob Davis responded correct.   Thank you for your time.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I’ll refer this back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 4-13      b.
Letter dated February 6, 2015 from Justin Stone updating the Planning Board on the status of the application of 3017 E. Main St. Realty Inc. for Amended Site Plan approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 1,728 sq. ft. convenience store and a 1,200 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a drawing entitled “Proposed Site Improvements” prepared by Bohler Engineering latest revision dated October 1, 2014.

Mr. Justin Stone stated good evening.  I’m Justin Stone with Van Horst Contractors.  How are you?  This pretty much is a reintroduction of a site plan that was submitted back in, I believe, 2005.  The project was put on hold due to financial matters.  To date the funds are back in place and we’re trying to get this project back off the ground.  Due to insufficient monies coming in for this project, due to lack of sales, as there’s only a car wash right now on the property and minimal gas sales, just due to the lack of ins and outs of the property – do you have the electronic copy Chris?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded of the site plan?

Mr. Justin Stone stated yes sir.  What we have here is just a small modification from the site plan that was submitted back in, again I believe it was 2005, was prior to me coming onto the project.  The DEC had requested a mitigation for the wetlands I believe on the northeast corner of the property or just between northeast and northwest there.  What they requested was mitigation so there’s a shadow box fence that was shown on the plan with about 40 arborvitae and again I think I was told that the arborvitae may not be a good species in that area.  At the end of the day, the client doesn’t care either way if it’s arborvitae or whatever type of species, as long as we come to an agreement on the plantings there’s no issue or argument with the type of species.  There will be an approach or means of egress on the northeast corner going up to the access drive that we are now trying to work with Acadia Realty that owns the parcel; the Home Depot, Best Buy up on the hill.  We’re looking for an easement letter from them to provide to the DEC to gain the approval both from the DEC as well as the Town of Cortlandt to construct that easement to the access drive.  With that being said, the Shell drawing of the building has not been changed except for we have taken off some square footage on the face of the carwash.  We took about 13 ½ feet off of there just due to the fact that the way the cars are pulling up to the pumps and then trying to get out of the property as well as cars trying to back out of spaces it became very clustered if you would. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and that’s in this area here?

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes, right there where you have the little tee of concrete, right there, right to your left.  That building was actually right now existing is about 13 ½, 14 feet forward from that and that was on the existing site plan to show as remaining.  As we sat down with the client it made sense – I think some discussions that we had as well if we scale that building back a little bit it would be safer for not only the people fueling but trying to leave the property as you’re limited to the exits on this property; you can only go right on East Main Street and going into the access drive you can also only go right up into the plaza where the customers will have to turn around and come back down the hill as there is a concrete 6-inch median that is being constructed with no left turn access. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked is the building you’re talking about the existing carwash building?

Mr. Justin Stone responded there’s 1,500 square foot of an existing carwash.  What we plan on doing is adding, I believe it’s about 1,200 square feet, onto the back of the carwash cutting off some of the front of it just for better access and safety on the property for pedestrians and also people in the cars trying to exit.  There’s also an additional, just about 1,700 square foot of convenience store space that will also be attached to the building.  Again, the Shell drawing on this site plan, the only change from 2005 was the removal of the 13 ½ feet off the front for safety issues.  Again, this is a reintroduction but we’re also trying to see if there’s any way that we can – while it’s going through the site plan approval, or the re-site plan approval I should say, if there’s any way where we can at least get some type of preliminary approval on the Shell itself to kind of expedite the process as you’re going through the P&Z approval where we can start the architectural’s instructural movements on the building.  Due to the fact that right now the customer is getting really close to having to board up the property with just all he has is minimal gas sales, the carwash is at the point of just – dilapidating, the insides if you would.  The insides of the carwash for repair right now, they’re looking at about $170,000.  The whole replacement is only $250,000 with the addition onto the building.  At this point, he’s really at that fine line of: does he close the property and wait for approval or is there any way that we can work with each other and keep it the P&Z, or approval process, review process moving where we can hopefully get the architects to start working on the buildings so when the P&Z portion is complete and agreed to we can pretty much just start moving forward with the construction and groundbreaking, etc.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you saying the carwash now is not that busy because of the deterioration of the building itself?

Mr. Justin Stone responded the building is not deteriorating in a structural manner.  The insides are just so worn out.  They keep repairing piece after piece, after piece and at the end of the day it just needs to be replaced a hundred percent.

Mr. Robert Foley asked have you considered not even having a carwash, instead of having the three components to your project, just two?

Mr. Justin Stone responded I have not considered that and I don’t know if that’s a consideration with the client.  I know on a lot of his properties he’s a fanatic about carwashes.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked does he have the one on 202 in Yorktown?

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes sir.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked does this more clearly represent what you were mentioning?  This is existing carwash?

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes sir.

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued that’s going to go away?

Mr. Justin Stone responded no, we’re just about 13 ½ off the front so where that hash line is down in the front, there’s a solid line right above that, that’s the edge of the building so another 13 ½ feet we’re going to chop off just due to the fact is we’re doing the car routing when we’re also doing the truck routing we’re looking at all the ins and outs…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked so that line is not on the map?

Mr. Justin Stone responded correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but somewhere in here is where it gets shrunk?

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes sir, almost to where that sidewalk is kind of creating that radius there on the right hand side, right about that area there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I’m really confused by this piece here that you’re talking about but I’m even more confused by the particular way these arrows go for circulation.  I just don’t understand.  There’s just so many of them.  I don’t understand how this really will work safely.

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s a busy drawing.

Mr. Justin Stone responded the dark grey if you would is the truck route.  The fueling trucks have to come in and provide the fuel to the tanks.  That is where the WB67 I think is the type of truck that they’re showing; will pull in, they’ll have to drop fuel on the right side of the property, right there there’s a rectangle with three dots on it Chris, right there, that’s where they have to fill up the fuel for tanks and then they’re showing, again the dark grey is the truck leaving the property, showing how they exit and then having to go up to the Home Depot.  The black arrows: there are one, which again I believe will be yellow or white whatever’s mandated by the town or the state, showing the entrance to the carwash only and then the exit for the cars only.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m looking at the drawing that looks like that.  It’s extremely difficult to read, there’s just so many arrows and so much marking all over it.  It’s very difficult to read.  It would be helpful if we could get a plan that is cleared up and cleaned up so we can see more clearly what it is you’re doing…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and I think that’s the intent of this plan just to show the truck movements and you’ll get paper copies of all of these drawings.

Mr. Justin Stone stated correct.  Everything on here is required for a site plan but there’s a kind of scaled back version on the monitor there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the only way out the fuel trucks can go is through that route out onto the easement you’re trying to get to bring the road out to the access road?

Mr. Justin Stone responded that’s not the preferred exiting.  The preferred exit would be to take a left.  Again, the fuel drop will be off hours.  We wanted to go with left but I believe that it was required by the town.  I believe we’re only allowed to make a right out of the property, not a left.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated no, but I mean to get off your property, these large fuel trucks, that’s the only way they can go out.  They can’t do a u-turn on the property and try to come back out on Route 6 correct?

Mr. Justin Stone responded correct.  Initially, we were planning to take a left and leave the property and again I’m not…

Mr. Robert Foley asked take a left where, up…

Mr. Justin Stone responded hoping to take an exit left out onto the access drive to leave.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s what you’ve prohibited by putting – he’s aware of that.

Mr. Justin Stone stated I’m aware of that yes.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so it sounds like before we can do anything with this you need to let us know whether you have an easement with Acadia right?

Mr. Justin Stone responded that’s what we’re trying to work with Acadia now and until we get some type of – we’re working on the planning approval.  We’re working on the DEC as well.  We had approval from Galileo which owned the property previously.  Since then I think Acadia purchased the property.  We’re working with them diligently.  They promise me sending letter after letter, after letter and then they just kind of went row.  No answers, no phone calls.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that’s been then hang up too because DEC doesn’t want to permit the wetland incursion if there’s no ability to connect to the access road but that’s been the hang up for five years now.

Mr. Justin Stone responded correct, the DEC, again we’ve provided all the documentation that the DEC is required to date.  The only thing that’s holding up the DEC for final review is the easement letter.  Now, it was my understanding from, again we have the easement letter that was signed back in 2005 but it was never…

Mr. John Klarl asked what’s an easement letter?  An intent to enter an easement?

Mr. Justin Stone responded it was an agreement that, yes…

Mr. John Klarl asked or was it the easement itself?

Mr. Justin Stone responded it was the easement themselves allowing us to create the easement onto the access drive.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there was no schedule A.

Mr. Justin Stone stated there was no schedule A, correct.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that was a condition of Best Buy resolution that the owner of the Cortlandt Town Center would grant access as being described.  There is a signed agreement to that effect but it’s not…

Mr. John Klarl asked which easement are you referring to?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes right, but we need a schedule A, we need a description of that easement which you’re going to supply to us.

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes, Bohler Engineering has been compiling all that information.  That should be done shortly to the submittal to your office first for prior review I believe is what we discussed.  We’re going to get that over to Acadia.  Again, the only person that told me about the schedule A was you two gentlemen there.  Acadia was: yes you’re going to have the letter.  You’re going to have two days, three days, four days.  We know with Galileo with the same people in effect that the company at the time which is Tom Eikhof had worked hand-in-hand and had the original one signed.  The problem was it was signed and it was never processed before the project was, as you say, put on hold.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is staff saying that there is a real likelihood that Acadia would grant in conjunction with the DEC, that easement to allow a left turn out of this new…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded not a left turn, just what you’re looking at.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the whole idea of a left turn…

Mr. Justin Stone stated the left turn is a whole other…

Mr. Robert Foley stated so your trucks would have to go up through the Town Center and turn or come out another exit.

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes.  The client does want the left turn, absolutely.  At this point he’ll do anything to start the project.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and these fuel trucks would only be coming in like off hours?

Mr. Justin Stone responded off hours and right now I think they’re only coming in, I could be wrong, but I believe it’s one every three days because the lack of fuel sales.

Mr. Robert Foley stated what time of day, not at the height of the Town Center operations I hope?
Mr. Justin Stone responded no.  It’s typically off hours, usually after 10 at night.  I could be off with that but I believe that’s when the other local stations he has are getting their deliveries from my understanding. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated they come in at night, yes.

Mr. Justin Stone stated correct.

Mr. Peter Daly asked now you said DEC was asking for these – you had the arborvitae but something to be planted there in the back?  That was what DEC was asking?

Mr. Justin Stone responded no, they asked for some type of additional mitigation.  That was one of the renderings that Bohler came up with, with the fence and the arborvitae, and again the species of the trees.  It doesn’t matter.

Mr. Peter Daly stated they’re probably the worst thing.

Mr. Justin Stone stated again, that was just to get it onto a plan.  We’ve sent that over to the DEC.  Again, they have everything.  They’re just pending final review, waiting on the easement letter right now.

Mr. Peter Daly stated they didn’t suggest anything themselves then.

Mr. Justin Stone responded no, they will not.  They won’t.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think going back looking at this case previously one of the issues on the site plan was this conflict, I call it a conflict, of the cars that are exiting the carwash with the road that you’re adding on the left side, right in that area where the hand is.  I think that was one of the areas of concern where if you have a busy carwash, as I’m sure you hope he has a busy carwash, and you have traffic coming in on the access road making the right to get onto your site, that’s going to be a very busy intersection.  I’ve got a lot of concerns with how people are going to avoid each other.  Cars come out of the carwash and they shoot right down for drying and cars come and cross – it’s going to be a problem.  I don’t know what the answer is.  I’m just saying that’s one of the issues that I have.
Mr. Justin Stone stated and right now we’ll call that roadway to the left of the carwash or the driveway, that’s existing to date.  Again, we’re scaling – the idea is to scale back and remove part of the front of that building to create some more room.  We’re hoping, again we’re going by the allowances per code in the town with green space, we would really like to remove some of that green space down on the left hand side there as it really just tightens everything up.  But again, that part of the carwash is existing.  Removing some of that will give you more of a…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m just pointing that out as an issue in my mind right now.  Also, when you leave the property there’s no left hand turn signs on Route 6, exiting your property, by the carwash exit.  So nobody’s allowed to make a left over there of course.

Mr. Justin Stone stated there’s existing signs there today correct?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Justin Stone stated they’re across the street and also on the property.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when the bus is there you don’t see them. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated you just plain ignore that anyway whether they see it or not.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated maybe more signage on your site.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it raises an important point though.  There should be, and I would encourage your client to engage with the Wendy’s restaurant to have some type of an agreement to open up some kind of access between your site and the Wendy’s site.  It’s an extremely dangerous area on Cortlandt Boulevard there.  There is no left turn there but the more interconnection there is on those sites the better it’s going to be so it’s not there now but I’d like you to be thinking that way and see a way where that might interact with the Wendy’s property if Wendy’s and your client were able to come to an agreement as well.

Mr. Justin Stone stated that’s a phenomenal idea and we were actually discussing that.  I forget who brought it up to but it was – we decided that in the past…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, again it’s addressing an agreement also.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the easement would go all the way to the boundary with Wendy’s so Wendy’s could connect in.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s been a point of discussion point for 10 years or more.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I thought that we had understood that there was some opposition from Wendy’s.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that true?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the lack of interest really.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there any proactive approaches to Wendy’s on this?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded there was.

Mr. Robert Foley stated are they familiar with your plan?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded they were aware of the application back in 2005, 2006 and they showed no interest.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the easement would be brought right to their property line so I would assume that they would eventually show an interest.  

Mr. Justin Stone stated I think it would benefit everybody at the end of the day.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can I ask again, because you were mentioning the carwash earlier and the problems you have and the cost incurred to restore it or get it up to snuff.  Is the owner’s business plan, definite – you definitely want to keep the carwash?

Mr. Justin Stone responded that’s my understanding yes sir.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you wouldn’t just think that adding the component of the food mart and keeping the gas station…

Mr. Justin Stone responded we need some type of offset with the carwash.  If you just have a small C-store there, again that’s just a convenience.  People aren’t going there as a destination due to how cumbersome the access is to the property as well as the exiting of the property.  I think the funds or the profits are going to come from a split share from both the carwash and the C-store as well as some of the gas.  Right now, my understanding is you’re not going to survive just on gas there.  They’re not surviving and they’re not surviving on what they have on the limited carwash that they have.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it can’t be relocated elsewhere on your site to make a safer flow of traffic and so forth?

Mr. Justin Stone responded again, I think the idea was, and again this is prior to myself coming onto the project was to utilize some of the existing building.  My understanding is due to some of the setbacks.  I could be wrong but that was my understanding.  You also have existing gas tanks under the ground.  On the right side of the property which is not shown on the plans is a pretty extensive water detention system that takes up a decent size of the property underground so that limits you to installing footings, foundations, the main structure to accommodate a main building. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked even in the back of the property?  I can see now on the right side it wouldn’t work but I don’t know – this thing with the carwash, that’s causing – it causes it now and then with the convenience store it would only confound the problem. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I ask if you would pull that down to the Cortlandt Boulevard and sort of just walk us through how a car comes in and circulates.  Say it wants to go to the convenience store first, then he wants to get into the carwash lane.  How does that…

Mr. Justin Stone responded right now you just pull in through the entrance off of East Main Street, that rectangle right there is the gas canopy in the ceiling.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s say they didn’t want gas, they just wanted to go to…

Mr. Justin Stone responded yes, I was just explaining what’s there.  So, you’re going to pull into the property, you’re going to stay to the right of the fueling island, you’re going to swerve to the left and pull into the parking spaces.  If you want to go into the carwash after that, you’re going to back out to your left and then pull into your carwash lane which is the far left lane with the arrows and you’re going to go around the building into the carwash and go through the process of the carwash, exiting.  Again, this route over here to the left of the building is only for cars that are pulling in off the access drive that may be taking a right versus trying to take a left off of East Main Street.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would you go back up to where cars are coming out on top there, just move it back up.  Now you have cars coming off the – there’s an arrow here going this way, no not in there, go up further, right there in that area.  There are cars coming from the Cortlandt Town Center and they’re going to come in here to get a quick carwash.  What’s going on there?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded no, they can’t do that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked they can’t.  So what is that?  I’m looking at an arrow.  What is that arrow there for?

Mr. Robert Foley asked what is the purpose of that lane of traffic parallel to the access road?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the only people that would go in there are people that are coming from Westbrook or people making a left into the site that don’t want to make a left directly into the site would go left into the access road and make a right into the Shell station.  But, it seems like only the Westbrook Drive people…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated anyone heading west on Route 6 that wants to get here, it’s prohibited to make a left off of Route 6 into there now so you would have to come in here…

Mr. Robert Foley stated they’d have to come up the access drive…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re on Cortlandt Boulevard coming up…

Mr. Justin Stone stated you can make a left into the Wendy’s but not the gas station right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’m not sure you can do the Wendy’s.

Mr. Justin Stone stated there’s no signs that say ‘no left.’

Mr. Jim Creighton stated there were but it’s been taking out.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words, they’d come in, they’d come down this long – Loretta was asking, come around there, down to the front, stop at the stop sign, make sure – and if they’re queued up if the carwash cars are queued up for drying, then they wait, then they cut across the front and either go to the gas pumps and/or up to the convenience store. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated you can have cars at the gas pumps and they’re going to be creating…

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s a long way around.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think you need to work on that circulation because it is really [inaudible].
Mr. Justin Stone stated I think it was my understanding back in ’05, this was preliminary approval minus an easement letter and DEC approval.  This was just to kind of bring it back to life.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t remember – I don’t have my old drawings there.  I need to go back up.  I’m still asking what is that arrow there for if you can’t really use it?  That arrow right there, where are people coming from?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you’re coming from Route 6, going up the Cortlandt Town Center access road, turning right, you can’t go that way, that’s a curb so you would turn and come this way and come down here to get into the whole site.  That’s people going west on Route 6. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated or going south on Westbrook.

Mr. Justin Stone stated without the options of taking a left onto the property you have to give the customer some type of option to get onto the property.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s the only way anybody can enter the property going west on Route 6.  They can’t make a left onto this site so they would make a left onto the Cortlandt Town Center access drive and then a right into the site. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated unless they went up to Odd Jobs or Odd Lots, turn there at the light and come back out.

Mr. Justin Stone stated no you can’t because now the way they have this raised median if you will, 6-inch median in between the lanes of the access drive, you’re not going to be able to take a left into the property either so you’re only limited to taking a right onto the property, going north on East Main.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated that’s the limitation on your site.  You’re at a spot where the New York State DOT has determined that if somebody is going westbound on Route 6, they’re not allowed to make a left turn into your site.  That’s the limitation of your site.

Mr. Justin Stone asked but does New York State DOT mandate what’s on the access drive?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded no but your site plan is going to be heavily – it’s got to work.  If it doesn’t work, you can’t get it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you have what will be or you hope will be if you get it done, a highly dense and high volume location that’s kind of squeezed in there with a lot of traffic activity for three different reasons: either carwash, convenience store and/or gas.  It’s just a tough…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and just for the record, I believe in years past, whether it was the 2005 or 2006 application or another one in 2009, you got to public hearings but I don’t think there was ever a Resolution of approval.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m looking at my notes.  There was never an approval.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you’ve got farther along than you are now and there were public hearings but I don’t think it ever got approved.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there were a lot of adjourned public hearings.

Mr. Justin Stone stated I was led to believe, again that was before my time, that it was in preliminary approval pending DEC approval.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, no, no, in fact, when we never heard anything the last action was I think we declare the application abandoned and we closed the file.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, and that’s why the case came back in 2013. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but there was never an approval.  It was just an abandoned application.

Mr. John Klarl stated they withdrew on three occasions.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we know you’re new to it but since that 10-year period or less everything’s changed.  There’s more build-up, there are more traffic pattern…

Mr. Justin Stone stated well the only build-up is the adjacent property across the access drive.  The Wendy’s has been there.  The Home Depot has been there.  The Best Buy was out on the Home Depot property.  The lanes in the front on East Main Street, those have not changed.  That’s my understanding.

Mr. Robert Foley stated across the street there’s more activity with the car dealerships.  Ten years is a long time.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes it is.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated who knows, you might even have a Starbuck’s.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated one of the major cases you’re making is you’re asking us to sort of give some kind of preliminary nod to this project but given the problems we’ve had in the past with this site and the fact that, from what I’m looking at, this is going to be kind of a crazy circulation.  Somebody might decide to go someplace else and get their carwash and you also admitted that the one thing is dependent on the other thing: the carwash will need the store, the store will need the carwash.  It kind of looks like the person, whoever the applicant is, they need to really rethink what they’re doing because you might be just setting up yourself for a costly failure.  You’ve got to go renovate or redo the inside of this and cut off that and join these two things together and deal with the access from the Cortlandt Town Center.  All of this I’m sure involves a certain amount of time and energy and money and I really am thinking that this is kind of maybe ambitious for this site.

Mr. Justin Stone asked when you said passed problems with the project, can you define that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we were never able to approve it because the applicants came and then left and came and then left and there were problems with money, obviously.  I don’t really know whether there’s sufficient financial…
Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t know if we’re allowed to say…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s not really our say so that you can’t build it because you don’t have the money but the bottom line is, unless you have the money to do all of these things…

Mr. Justin Stone stated we’re here today because the money is there.  I wouldn’t be standing here.

Mr. Peter Daly asked can the gas island be moved somewhat more to the west, because you’ve got a bit of a constriction between that and the carwash even as you propose that it’s constricting the area.

Mr. Justin Stone responded correct.  It’s placed in regards to the setbacks on the property.  Could we place it more to the west and going through for a Variance on the setbacks?
Mr. Peter Daly responded you’re well away from the 30 foot side setback. 

Mr. Justin Stone stated if you move it to the west your footings for the canopy wash will be sitting on top of the gas tanks.

Mr. Peter Daly stated okay, so that’s an issue.  You’re partially over the gas tanks as it is.

Mr. Justin Stone stated the tanks are land locked.  Those are up to par.  We can’t pull those out.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record, just to correct myself.  There was originally an application back in ’94 and there was an approval for a carwash only back in July of ’95.  Just about 20 years ago there was an approval but subsequent to that there were subsequent applications.

Mr. Justin Stone asked that was a prior owner at that time?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, it was surprisingly the same one.  You say El Jamal.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and there were no gas pumps there then Steve?  There were no gas pumps in ’94?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded there was.  Then it was a Mobile carwash and all they were looking to do was build a carwash.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the gas pumps were there already.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the gas pumps were there, right.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated no convenience store. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated not back then.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated oh no convenience store, just the pumps in addition to the carwash.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we really will have to refer you back to staff anyway so you sort of heard some of our concerns and…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what were you looking from us tonight?

Mr. Justin Stone responded again, that’s somewhat of a moot point.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but you were also asking us to do something.

Mr. Justin Stone stated no, it was my understanding that this was already preliminary approved before it kind of went to the way side and the only changes were the additional mitigation for the wetlands, the change that we took 13 feet off the building to make it safer.  Again, I’m digging through trying to make sense of the project so that’s what I was led to believe or actually told so I was hoping to get some type of preliminary approval on the Shell of the building itself.

Mr. John Klarl stated you only get a copy of the review memo by the Planning Department staff dated May 7th, 2013.  It’s a nice compendium of what was going on there.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether he has that.  Do you have it?

Mr. John Klarl stated you should get it, the May 7th 2013.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated his engineer, Bohler Engineering has always been a consistent engineer so they would have that review memo.

Mr. John Klarl stated Jim Gillespie.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you work with Jim Gillespie, right?  But the other thing obviously the board needs to be aware of is you still need to have a public hearing on this.  You were further along in the 2009 application but further along to the point where you kept adjourning it saying “we just need to hear from DEC.” But, you never made any representation that once you heard from DEC you were going to approve it.  It was simply adjourned waiting for that and that never came.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that we’re going to refer this back to staff.  You will have one of the meetings you need to have with them.  We will maybe take it up next month, maybe not but I don’t think this board is in a position to give you a little bit of a nod at this point until certain other things have been dealt with and staff can make you aware of some of the things that need to be done immediately if you want to move this along fairly quickly.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Justin Stone stated thank you.
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Mr. Ron Wegner the last time we were here we set up a site meeting and we walked the site with the board.  Subsequent to that, I went to visit the site with the town staff.  We received a few comments and the latest set of plans that I submitted, the March 24th plans were submitted with the intent of addressing the comments of the Planning Board and the town staff.  It’s been related to me that, now, I’m looking before this project toward the public hearing.  It’s been related that I believe you have some concerns over the project at this point.  Is that true?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded that’s true.

Mr. Ron Wegner asked and it has to do with parking circulation I believe.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, and the lighting.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated on the March 24th plans I have notations regarding the lighting with minimal values that we’re looking for.  I believe a half a foot candle in all the parking areas and one foot candle at all building entrances.  We will do readings for lighting and if we don’t have sufficient lighting we will put together something to the satisfaction of the department of Mr. Vergano.  I think we can handle that.  Over the course of the last couple of days, I have been working with the town staff and I’ve assembled the steps and it’s a revision to the parking area to the left of the building, where we have the angled parking.  I’ve done some changes: this is where we had the angled parking.  Having some discussions regarding providing adequate space from the parking spaces to the building, an adequate aisle-width, with the angled parking that we had, the reason that it was originally set up that way was due to the narrow aisle width that we there and if you recall, when we originally made the submittal we had an entrance to the building there with obstacles which made the aisle narrower than it is now.  Subsequently, we’ve gotten rid of those obstacles.  We’ve changed the building layout.  We’ve taken out the entrances at that point to widen up the aisle.  At that point it was 21 feet wide and we had the angled parking.  We’ve revisited the parking and looking at the spaces, the angled parking actually protrudes into the aisle like a half a foot more than perpendicular parking that’s shown here, however, the advantage to the angled parking is you have easier maneuvering into the space.  I’ve provided this plan here with perpendicular parking.  I’ve widened up the aisle to 23 feet I believe that’s what I have here.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated correct.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated just by pushing out onto the lawn area a foot, a foot and a half or so and provided perpendicular parking.  Now, the 23 feet is not quite a full hardy 25 feet but it’s getting close so in consideration of the slightly narrow aisle, I’ve widened up the parking spaces.  A standard parking space in the town of Cortlandt is 9’ x 18’ these are 9 ½’ wide to give you a little bit more room in the actual parking space to make the maneuvers and work your way into the aisle.  One other difference that you can see here is on the lower left corner of the sheet where I had the angled parking, I brought the angled parking pretty much all the way to the corner.  With the perpendicular parking as was shown here, I was able to fit those spaces in a bit of a smaller space and looking at the layout of that corner, I decided to throw some landscaping there which, to clear up any kind of confusion, it did not make sense to put a perpendicular parking space there because that would be backing into the intersection, it didn’t make sense so I increased the landscaping island there which would also act to guide the traffic around that corner unlike the previous submittal.  I think with these improvements, I’m hoping that this sketch can satisfy your concerns on the traffic circulation and the parking on the site.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and you’ve gained this spot too.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated yes, we actually did.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so how many spots do you need for this site?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded zoning requires I believe 31.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked how many do you have?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded if we would go with this layout we could have 37 I believe.  Now, we do have certain events; birthday events and some certain special events where it would certainly be advantageous to have the extra spaces.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated since you have more parking than you technically need and you may decide from a practical standpoint there may be a need for more and the upper left hand portion of the site where you’re going to have invariably some people trying to turn around, might it not make sense to at least lose those three spots up at the top right there and if you wanted, bank them if you need them later, if the town decides that you actually do need them, then stripe them but if you keep that open you may have a little bit more – you may have an easier time for your clientele to turn around and get back out of the site.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated that would be acceptable.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my bigger concern – go back up, can you go up a little bit more to the right?  

Mr. Ron Wegner asked you’re talking about the plan by the dumpster?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, by the dumpster.  What I see here is if all the spots are filled, people have to back up out of that area to get out of the site.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded right, what we’ve done there…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the thing for your dump truck would also have to back up out of there?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes, and the garbage truck, he would have to back out of there.  I don’t see that as being an issue and we’ve made revisions from the last plan.  What we’ve done is we’ve actually pushed the dumpster closer to the property line and opened up those landscaped areas to make room for maneuvering room for backing up for those last two spots.  Never mind that I have a 29-foot aisle there also but those changes were made based on site walks with town staff.  That’s really where we made our changes.  Previously, the dumpster was further north, I’ll say, closer to the railroad station access and also the landscaped island or landscaped areas furthest from the existing building, that landscaped area was up to the edge of the parking area.  
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked which one are you talking about?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded where the cursor is, right there.  That landscaped area went right up to that parking space right there and I’ve opened that area up to make backing maneuvering space for the parking space across the aisle.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked meaning to do this?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded exactly.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked the dumpster, the garbage trucks, do they come in on off hours when there’s not likely to be – those spots may not be occupied with cars?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded well, garbage trucks are used to getting in and out of some spaces.  He can come right up the middle of the aisle, unload the dumpster and back right up to where Chris just had the cursor there.  He can back up the aisle and make that maneuver and they do have commercial driver’s licenses to drive those dump trucks.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked they would be coming in during when this site is being used?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded I’m not certain when the garbage gets picked up.

Mr. Robert Foley stated maybe off hours, they may not even have the cars there.

Mr. Jean Moon stated the parking lot doesn’t get busy until around 4:30ish, 4:45 is our first lesson so until then it’s empty.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated except maybe on weekends and we’re not picking up garbage on the weekends anyway.

Mr. Jean Moon stated that’s correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s town pickup?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is it town pick up?

Mr. Robert Foley asked or private?

Mr. Jean Moon responded I’m not sure.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not sure either.

Mr. Peter Daly responded I would think it would be private.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Wegner maybe we need to have Mr. Moon identify himself for the purpose of…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated that’s Mr. Moon the applicant, Jean Moon.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated he didn’t say his name so that when the person is transcribing you.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated understood.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the Planning Board would want the drawing revised to show those three spaces in the back to be removed and a note added: “future parking to be added if needed,” something along those lines.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated I’d be happy to do that.  I can provide that promptly before the next submission so this way you can have it in plenty of time for a public hearing and while I’m at it, there’s a couple of numbers on the plan that I’m going to have to revise with revised parking layout anyhow.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Ron just so I’m clear on this, in order to get the perpendicular parking and the 23-foot not 21-foot aisle you had to go into the adjacent wooded area correct?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes, I just had to bump out the asphalt about a foot, a foot and a half right there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and that’s right here, all along there?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded right along there right.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it seems like it would be more than a foot, a foot and a half.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded actually no, with the angled parking – the size of the space is the same and when we butted up against the surface, you were kind of going corner to corner.  The spaces are 18 feet deep.  With the angles this far corner comes out to 18 ½ feet so by going perpendicular, it actually tucks in just a little bit.  I had 21 feet before; a foot and a half gets me to 23 feet.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated okay.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I’m just wondering if it wouldn’t be easier to get more maneuverability in the back there by where it’s constricted to 26 feet just to eliminate either one or two of those spaces by the building.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I agree with that. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated I’m looking at that and it makes more sense than even removing the other three in some respect.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it feels like it’s very tight there. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated when I try to imagine driving it that’s what I’m thinking is “gee, I would like to have more space to make my turn.”

Mr. Ron Wegner stated now, we’re not going to be making these turns at speed.

Mr. Peter Daly stated yes, but chances are you’re going to have people coming in trying to leave at the same time as you’re trying to come in.  The more space the better.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked how many were you over?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you’re over by 6.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so why couldn’t you lose the three on the end and two closest to the entrance to the building or in that corner?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and its existing asphalt so when they say lose, you’re not striping it.  You’re marking it on the plan as future parking and then based on your business operations I guess you’d have to come back to the Planning Board and say “look I’ve been opened six months.  I need these spaces,” and then they would take a look at it then.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re saying they would be striped?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they wouldn’t be striped.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why wouldn’t people just pull in there and park there?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded maybe you would have to stripe them differently.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated well it says resurface all on-site parking, driveway areas except landscaped areas.  They’re planning on resurfacing everything anyway and then restripe.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded absolutely, yes.

Mr. Peter Daly stated they just stripe it as a “no parking” zone.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated exactly.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s where you put a little sign on the building “no parking.”

Mr. Ed Vergano stated they can use “no parking” signs.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, that’s easy.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that seems to me, Ron, if those five spaces are removed and noted as possible future spaces, it might move this process along.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated I’ll tell you what, how about we lose the three that we talked about in the back corner and the one on the very corner of the building; four spaces.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so you’re splitting the difference between the five.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated yes I am, absolutely.  I do want to move along.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated you still have two or three more than you need.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes, but like I said, by code…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated you’ll use them.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated yes, we’ll use them and we might come back asking to use these again but would that be acceptable?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, I think so.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes, that’s fine.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I think so.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t want to compound the board, if you move the dumpster to the area where the three spaces we’re talking about to, the top left, and then gain the space where the dumpster is or two spaces.

Mr. Peter Daly stated easier for the garbage truck.

Mr. Robert Foley stated garbage truck wouldn’t have to come in as far unless there’s a reason you have the dumpster…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated closer to the building.

Mr. Robert Foley continued to the building there’s no access out of the building down here?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes there is actually access if you look…

Mr. Peter Daly stated probably, it’s about as far away from that building egress as in either position.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated right, however, we can get to this dumpster without going through the parking lot, when you go up the sidewalk and be right there, we don’t have to go passed parking spaces really, through parking spaces to get there.  Actually, in my opinion it would be an easier maneuver for the garbage truck to back straight up behind the building than coming in straight and then having to turn around where the three spaces would be gone.  Four spaces and schedule a public hearing?
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I don’t know.  How are we feeling on the board?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I’m okay with that.

Mr. Ron Wegner asked while I’m at it, could we prepare a Resolution?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re looking at maybe scheduling that public hearing.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you’re asking for the public hearing?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes I am and I will make the plan revisions and get them in, in short order before the submittal deadline so that way...
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well before the submittal deadline.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because it needs to get to us and…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated tomorrow’s Wednesday.  If you need it tomorrow…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to advertise for the public hearing has nothing to do with the submittal date.  I need it earlier than the submittal date but that’s fine…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated work it out.  You call him or you call him.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer for the new plan but also to schedule a public hearing for May 5th.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and staff readily acknowledges he has not other resolutions to prepare for the next meeting so I don’t care.  I can prepare this one and hold it in abeyance.  I don’t think you’re going to have a lot of public comment one way or another so that’s fine with me.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so a resolution ready also.  That’s the motion.  I make a motion to refer this back for the revised plan, to schedule a public hearing for May 5th and have a resolution of approval at that time if it’s appropriate for approval.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Ron Wegner stated thank you very much.  Have a wonderful evening.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

PB 1-15      d.
Application of Montauk Student Transport, LLC for the property of Worth Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland a Tree Removal Permit for a school bus depot with 185 parking spaces for buses and passenger vehicles, a fuel storage and dispensing facility and the use of the existing 4,200 sq. ft. garage/office facility and storage barn building for a business office, employee lounge and garage for light service and maintenance located on a 4.98 acre parcel of property at 301 6th Street as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Montauk Student Transport, LLC” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. dated March 5, 2015.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz here this evening representing Montauk Student Transport and Worth Properties.  With me this evening, our client John Mench from the bus company as well as Tim Cronin from Cronin Engineering.  Madame Chair, this application had been submitted previously and Mr. Cronin and I believe it might have actually been pulled off of the last agenda because of some changes.  So, although you’ve got us listed under ‘old business’ I think this is actually the first appearance on the matter.  Steve is telling me no.
Mr. John Klarl stated we referred back last time.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked you did refer back last time?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated February, it was on the agenda in February.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’re here to answer any questions and to walk the board through the plan if that’s what you’d like.  Mr. Cronin is here to do that.  As I think the board knows, and we discussed it in the work session, this is a property that our client purchased.  It is a former industrial site that was utilized for the parking servicing and fueling of trucks, specifically oil delivery trucks.  It was the subject initially of an application to the Zoning Board of Appeals to confirm that the use as a bus depot is indeed a lawful use on the property.  As Mr. Klarl can apprise the board, we submitted, filed and processed an application before the Zoning Board of Appeals and were successful in securing an interpretation that the use of the property is lawful.  Our client admittedly is on the site currently without a site plan approval.  We have appeared in front of the local justice court to address that and adjourn that matter in contemplation of processing the application before this board.  We are here to do that.  Mr. Mench and his company, I should mention, provide bus services in the local community predominantly for students with special needs and operates a number of buses as well as vans with drivers as well as aides on those vans for the special needs students in the Hen Hud school district, the Peekskill school district and some of the outlined districts as well. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we did discuss this at the work session and I think there are some concerns regarding the drawing as well as compliance and things like that.  There was a review memo.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, there was a lengthy review memo that has been received by the applicant.  We are requesting them to fund escrow accounts for both our wetland consultant and our tree consultant to get out there.  There are detailed comments from the building inspector and the Engineering Department so it is a little out of order in the sense that both Steve and David I think were correct.  They were here under ‘new business’ but really didn’t make much of a presentation because they knew they were going to revise the drawings then in the interim I got the revised drawing and did the review memo.  Typically they wouldn’t be back until they had started to address the comments in the review memo.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and the review memo, Chris correct me if I’m wrong, I think was dated about 10 days ago or two weeks ago.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  There are significant issues raised in that review memo that will necessitate revisions to the drawing probably meetings with staff but the first thing is really about delineating the wetland which is really a buffer from the Hudson River as well as the tree work that needs to be done.  You did talk about trying to get out there on your own and take a look at it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether anybody was able to because it was just last Thursday to now.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I was there briefly this afternoon.  I didn’t see that much of it.  It was only from the street.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’d renew Mr. Daly and members of the board the offer that I made at the work session.  We’re certainly prepared to schedule a site inspection and a site walk with the entire board and get you out, not only from the street view but get you onto the property so that you can see the site, the topography, why certain areas ought to be improved and how Mr. Mench is organizing and circulating the buses.  If that will help you in your site plan review, Mr. Cronin and I both think it might be prudent to conduct a site inspection.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m trying to figure out whether we would want to do that before we can get that memo, some response – what do you think?  What do you want to do?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to be honest, I’ve often thought that the earlier you guys get out to the site, the better.  I know that our normal procedure is wait for the review memo.   That’s your call, but it is helpful to get out and see the site.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair, if you’d prefer, we could make some changes in response to the review memo which I know Mr. Cronin and his firm will be working on, submit that, have you review that and then potentially go out if that makes things easier because since we do have a review memo and we are now in a position Tim to begin to make some changes, we could do that and then go out onto the site with a revised plan rather than the plan that exists today.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think, from my mind, that’s a better thing to do because there are things that some of us may not be aware of that would be something we would look for or look to see that it’s being addressed in some way after we get a review memo but sort of walking out there on the blind side not knowing all of what we need to know I think is possibly problematic and then we’d end up going back again after…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing, is obviously the wetland delineation is not going to be done.  There’s going to be some stuff that you’re going to say “oh well, it’s nice that we saw all that but we may have to come back or something like that.”  That’s why I think at the work session you had sort of leaned towards trying to do a little bit more informally but doing it informally during the week would show you the operations better than if you go on your normal Sunday, but going on the Sunday shows you the site issues.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how do you feel about this?  You want to go now or later or what?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded I think we have another month to be able to get in.  If we don’t go in May, we still have June when the schools are still in session and theoretically the use of the site won’t be different from May to June.  Once we get into July or August when there are camps there may be a different operational…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked will we have the wetland reports and the trees reports by then?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I just sent the letter asking for the proposals.  That may not be until next week, then we’ve got to get the money, then we’ve got to get them out there.  It would be tight to have it by the first Sunday in May.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no by June.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated by June yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that makes sense then.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that sounds more appropriate.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for me, I think so too.  I guess what we’re going to do is just refer this back at the moment.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one question that staff had is fueling of the buses, how is that happening now?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I believe the fuel trucks are coming to the site and fueling the buses on site.  As part of this application, there is a fueling station proposed but that is not in existence yet but that is hopefully what one of the things we’ll be getting approval for.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it’s truck to bus right now?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded remote fueling right now; mobile fueling.
Mr. Robert Foley stated and there’s some kind of a monitor, an environmental person there during this operation, there are no spills…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the operation has to comply with all applicable rules and regulations.  Mr. Foley, if you wanted to know whether there was a monitor; John is there a monitor out there when that happens?

Mr. John Mench responded I’m the owner of Montauk Student Transport.  The process for fueling the buses is two-fold: one is partly the school districts supplies the fuel to certain buses on certain contracts and then the other part where the school district does not supply the fuel, we did a fleet fueling process where fuel companies come to site and fuel the bus from truck to bus.
Mr. Robert Foley asked and the driver’s there of that particular bus at that time or is…

Mr. John Mensch responded yes, we have a yard manager that manages the fueling company that comes and fuels the buses.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated from bus to bus?

Mr. John Mensch responded yes.  Just like they fuel bulldozers or excavators on highways when they do construction, cranes…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the fuel truck moves to each bus not each bus moving to…

Mr. John Mensch responded sometimes it’s easier that the fuel truck comes into site, parks and then the buses come into the truck and then park the buses in the back of the lot.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so it’s both kinds of things or just that primarily?

Mr. John Mensch responded primarily that way where the fuel truck comes in and parks because he has to unravel, put the PTO in and pump the fuel so it’s easier to do it once it’s stopped and parked.

Inaudible.
Mr. John Mensch responded yes, because what happens is school districts purchase the fuel and they would deliver it once the fuel station is approved for tanks on site and then the fuel district will deliver the fuel to the tanks that are permitted through the process.

Mr. Robert Foley asked right now you’re dealing with three school districts: Hen Hud, Peekskill and now Put Valley?

Mr. John Mensch responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the Put Valley which is the furthest away from the site, those drivers would take a shuttle bus, park their personal cars in Put Valley at the school?

Mr. John Mensch responded no.  What happens is in the contract with Putnam Valley, they supply parking and fuel on their site up at their elementary school.  So, the buses that pertain to their school will be parked up there with the drivers parking on their site.

Mr. Robert Foley stated like it is now.

Mr. John Mensch stated like it is now, yes.  Then when the buses are off for Christmas break, Thanksgiving break, the summer time, those buses will come back to the site at Verplanck for light maintenance also.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it’s not like there’d be a proliferation of school bus drivers from Put Valley trying to get down to Verplanck?

Mr. John Mensch responded no, they would all be housed up in Putnam Valley at the elementary school and that’s part of the contract and that’s how it is now.

Mr. Robert Foley asked during the summer months, the 25 full sized buses for the Put Valley district will be parked on the site only during the summer months?

Mr. John Mensch responded correct, for light maintenance and then once they’re done for light maintenance and DOT inspection they will then go back up to the parking lot at Putnam Valley.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions, concerns?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked did anything come of the newspaper articles about the City of Peekskill and their busing contract issue?

Mr. John Mensch responded yes, the City of Peekskill years ago, I would say before my time had voted to extend the mileage limit for kids to walk to school.  The school districts in the state of New York have to abide by the state education law, not the municipality law.  What happens is the board of education has a right to expand or shorten the mileage limit for kids to walk to school.  At that time, Peekskill had voted without public vote, they just voted among themselves as a board member and expanded the high school.  So right now, currently we do not transport any high school kids in the City of Peekskill.  We only transport the elementary kids and the special ed. kids.  Private and parochial walk or the parents drive and the high school kids walk.  The parents did not like that because they thought it was discriminating to them so they had investigated the situation and found that the vote was illegal so the district attorney had notified the board members that they had to go out for a vote.  That vote is in May; it’s a proposition and it’s three ways: to go all busing, which would add more buses to my fleet, keep it the same as in the high school would still walk and the private schools will still be driven by parents and then the other way would be no busing, but regardless of that vote special ed. kids have to get busing regardless of any vote because that’s mandated by the state of New York.  So, the special ed. transportation and those buses will always run.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that’s a lot of what you do.

Mr. John Mensch responded correct, the majority of what I do.

Mr. Robert Foley asked with the name Montauk we were wondering, are you based on Long Island?

Mr. John Mensch responded we started in Montauk, my father started the business in 1969.  We do have other terminals.  We currently run close to 600 buses.  We do close to about 22 school districts in the state of New York and we also are in New Jersey, and New Brunswick. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked if this plan is approved, it gives you a lot more room and because Mr. Steinmetz’s associate at one of the meetings mentioned Lakeland, that’s why I asked if it’s only three districts now.  Is that the plan?

Mr. John Mensch responded some kids go to certain programs because certain school districts can’t house either classrooms or teacher staffed for certain autistic programs so what happens is other school districts will bus kids to other school districts to have a program, teach that kid for an hour or two or for half a day and then we have to bus them back to the home school.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it might a Hen Hud school but would go to another school for services.

Mr. Robert Foley stated then possibly with Lakeland in one of the special needs student buses?
Mr. John Mensch stated special ed. school districts or BOCES program too because we transport kids to Rockland County, all over the place.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but there wouldn’t be any Lakeland buses per se?

Mr. John Mensch responded no, Lakeland school district owns their own buses.

Mr. Robert Foley stated they own their own buses -- that’s why I’m asking.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in the interest of maybe conserving time and energy coming back and forth, would you want to schedule the site visit for say May 31st?  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s the Sunday, yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is it a Sunday?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded hopefully, let’s see.  That’s the Sunday before the June meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked let me ask you this, do we want to see this, if possible, maybe we would have to have two visits during the day of school day as opposed to just seeing the empty lot on Sundays, because on Sundays you’re not going to be moving people around.
Mr. John Mensch responded we don’t move people around on Sundays but you’ve got to also – we operate early in the morning so the kids get into school and then there’s no activity mid-day and then we go out in the afternoon to bring the kids back.  I don’t know if that affects your time of a visit.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I know sometimes just walking through the lot to be able to see all the buses and see how things are laid out.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well we’ll see them on a Sunday morning, all the buses will be there.

Mr. John Mensch stated all the buses will be there Sunday morning parked, yes, but the activity of the work day would be early in the morning, most of the buses are out by 6:30 a.m.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they’re actually parked the way they would be during a normal school day?

Mr. John Mensch responded yes, so if you come Sunday, come Monday morning those buses will be parked where you see them Sunday so where they pull out.

Mr. Robert Foley asked if we came on our own during a week day, during the hours of operation whether it’s the morning and then later afternoon or mid-afternoon.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I was out there mid-afternoon and employees seemed to be coming in to park to get the bus to go out which would be around 2, 2:30, 3:00ish.  Is that right?

Mr. John Mensch responded correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so if you want to go on your own that’s the time to go.

Mr. Peter Daly stated and I stopped there today, it was about 3:30 and buses were beginning to come in.  That would help too.
Mr. Robert Foley stated so in addition to a Sunday site visit, whenever we schedule it, if we wanted on our own to observe from the perimeter or whatever…

Mr. John Mensch responded sure, no problem.  If you wanted me to meet you there I could take you inside the gates so you get a better view of what’s happening.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see if we can work – we have a bit of time now between now and then so we can work out on something and see…

Inaudible.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody who has additional concerns or questions?

Mr. Robert Foley responded the letter from Conservation Advisory Committee and they are making some points about two aspects to it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s something that we didn’t address.  It was talked about briefly at the work session; the interim parking proposal which is something that I don’t think that the Planning Board was in favor of.  The memo that they’re talking about is the CAC wasn’t in favor of it either.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how does that affect this now?  They’re operating there now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it seems would probably remain the way they are.  We’re not going to – the board really didn’t feel that they wanted to give permission of things for them to sort of make changes before they were appropriate to do.  I’m not sure that we’re going to go with you getting permission to restage and do things differently.  We want to go through the process the appropriate way so we’re not – I don’t think any member of the board was in favor of this interim parking idea at all.

Mr. John Mensch stated okay.  We want to just make sure that we’re agreeing and working with the town to accommodate some of the parking.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we understand that but I don’t think the board was in favor of that at all.  We’re going to refer this back.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair, we’re not going to schedule a May 31st, we’ll do that next time?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know.  Do you want to do it now?  We could.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff and to schedule a site walk for Sunday, May 31st at 9 o’clock.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all.
PB 14-13    e.
Application of Acadia Cortlandt Crossing, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 170,000 sq. ft. shopping center for property located at 3144 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Cortlandt Crossing” prepared by Divney, Tung & Schwalbe, LLP dated October 24, 2014 (see prior PB 33-06).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz representing Acadia Realty Trust.  With me this evening Matthew Harrison from Acadia as well as Matthew Steinberg from Divney Tung & Schwalbe.  You can call me MAD.  We are here for our, I guess, first real site plan review in connection with the Cortlandt Crossing project.  As the board knows, we have an application pending before the town board for a zoning map change, extending the zoning district line further into the property to permit the development of 170,000 square foot shopping center.  The town board is serving as lead agency on the rezoning and the site plan and a number of other technical issues regarding improvement districts.  We have completed our draft Environmental Impact Statement, a public hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Statement and we are now at a point in this project where the applicant is working on preparing the FEIS, the Final Environmental Impact Statement and responding to the comments from the public, the comments from your board, the comments from the town board, the comments from Westchester County and we are in the process now of making certain refinements to the proposed site plan.  Matt Steinberg is here tonight to walk your board through the, what we call the base or the initial plan if you’d like us to do that.  As I mentioned at the work session, we do believe between now and May, there will be further revisions made as we’re working on the FEIS at this point in time.  We would very much like to schedule a public hearing so that a public hearing can be conducted before your board on the site plan.  There’s already been a public hearing conducted before the town board on the DEIS and I do want to state on behalf of Acadia, we appreciate the fact that the town is conducting in essence a simultaneous processing of the application which was something that we discussed with town staff as well as with the town attorney’s office where the rezoning is pending in front of the town board and the site plan review is now in a position where it can pick up before your board.  We’re here to make a brief presentation Madame Chair if that’s what the board is in favor of and again, procedurally we would hope that we could schedule a public hearing. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked but David, I thought you said you’re making changes to the site plan?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded there are going to be some changes that are going to be made…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why would we have a public hearing before we have the proposed site plan?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded you will have the site plan in advance, we believe in advance of May, if the board chooses to delay that public hearing, it’s certainly within your prerogative, but we had discussed with the board at the work session, we believe, that there aren’t going to be major changes.  There are going to be refinements that are consistent with comments that we’ve gotten from your board, the county, etc.  We certainly, Steve, could open the public hearing and commence the process and nobody’s going to ask this board, and I know this board is certainly not going to close before you’re ready to close, even if I asked.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked comments from the board?  Actually, is this the end of your presentation?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m ready to hand off to Mr. Steinberg and have him walk us through.

Mr. Matt Steinberg stated thank you Madame Chairperson.  We appeared before you and gave a brief overview of the project, I think a few months ago, but I’ll walk you through – this is sort of a version of the application that we presented to the town board.  So, it’s the same site plan that you previously saw.  The existing site is approximately 36 acres.  It’s located on the north side of Cortlandt Boulevard, directly across from Cortlandt Town Center.  It’s surrounded by a number of land uses, including the Van Cortlandtville Elementary School, Wild Birch Farms, the Cortlandt Colony and Baker Street neighborhoods, Cortlandt Town Center of course and caddy corner from the project, Pond View.  Currently there’s about 9.4 acres in the designed commercial district, the CD district.  In the rear portion of the property there’s approximately 26 acres in the R40 district.  There are seven existing driveways that lead onto Cortlandt Boulevard, these lead to a series of uncoordinated parking lots and several small commercial buildings generally with no architectural or commercial theme.  Chris, could you go to the next one?  The proposed project would move the CD district line to the north.  It would increase the CD district to approximately 17 acres.  The R40 district would be reduced to 19 acres and that 19 acres would remain as permanent open space.  The project includes approximately 170,000 square feet of retail and that is composed of: general retail, bank, a restaurant space and a proportion of non-retail commercial use, something like possibly a fitness club.  We would also reduce the site to have three entrances, three driveways.  This would include: a main driveway that would be aligned with the Cortlandt Town Center with an enhancement to that existing traffic signal.  There would be a new eastern right in/right out only driveway and a western driveway that would be right out only onto Cortlandt Boulevard.  There’s no connections to the residential neighborhoods proposed.  Generally, this is an illustrative site plan.  You can see the three driveways on the western portion of the site that lead into the main parking lot.  There’s a main building and then there are a number of freestanding smaller pads.  There would be entry plazas in front of the retail buildings.  We’re proposing to provide a buffer along the rear of the property, adjacent to the Lucz Lane and Baker Street neighborhoods.  This would be comprised of a number of plantings and a soil berm that buries from 10 to 12 feet above Lucz Lane that would contain a mix of deciduous and evergreen shrubs and trees.  Along Route 6, there would be streetscape enhancements. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked one question, is the sidewalk proposed in this area here?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded at this time, I don’t believe we have a sidewalk along that portion of the site.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think that was one of the county’s comments.

Mr. Matt Steinberg stated the county made a number of comments, this board made a number of comments on access so those are all the things that we are looking at and we’ll address those in the FEIS.  As part of this project, there are a number of public improvements: one of them includes the Baker Street intersection improvement.  That’s an off-site improvement not necessarily related to our access but it improves the situation along the Cortlandt Boulevard corridor.  This would realign the Cortlandt Town Center driveway to be directly across from Baker Street.  It would include a new traffic signal.  As part of that project, it would require the relocation or removal of the Mohegan Beer & Soda store which is described in the DEIS that you received a copy of as an involved agency.  There are also a number of sewer improvements.  The project would create a new sewer district that conveys the sanitary sewer from this project.  It would also provide access for the Van Cortlandtville School to connect in the future.  It also provides a sewer line to the end of Baker Street at the Baker Street/Route 6 intersection.  That would also provide access for those neighborhoods in the future should the town board approve expansion of the sewer district.  The project proposes a number of streetscape improvements.  There would be a new sidewalk along Cortlandt Boulevard in the frontage of this property.  There would be new street trees.  There would be new light poles using the town’s standard for Cortlandt Boulevard.  Right now we are proposing a mid-block connection.  There would be a connection directly across from Cortlandt Town Center into the site with a sidewalk but there would also be another one at sort of mid-block into the main portion of the site.  These are a few images of the proposed buildings.  The top just shows the main buildings, some of the smaller stores in the center with a pedestrian plaza.  The lower image is the main entrance across from Cortlandt Town Center.  These two images show, again, more of that main building and the potential anchor.  These are just representations of what these could look like.  This would be the other end of the building.  So, this would be the eastern end of the building, a potential anchor store and the lower image is from the rear as you saw on the illustrative site plan.  There’s a portion of the building that’s currently two stories.  This would be the entrance from that upper parking lot.  These represent the smaller pads, potentially a bank and a restaurant that would be located within the main parking area between Cortlandt Boulevard and the main building.  If the board has any questions we’d be happy to answer them.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked did you show a connection from the Cortlandt Town Center to that or you didn’t?  Was that a street crossing?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded at the main entrance of, and sorry it’s masked by the little label, the main entrance, there would be a new crosswalk.  There’s currently a signal obviously for Cortlandt Town Center.  That signal would be enhanced that it could be a four-leg signal.  There’d be a new crosswalk that would lead from Cortlandt Town Center across to the Cortlandt crossing site and then from there you could go either into the site or along Cortlandt Boulevard to the east.

Mr. Robert Foley asked will there be sidewalks coming out of the existing Cortlandt Town Center at that intersection?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded there is a sidewalk that runs along sort of in front of McDonald’s I believe.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s further down I think.  This is the main entrance – Best Buy?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded no this is across from…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the entrance is at McDonald’s

Mr. Matt Steinberg stated the main entrance, right.  So, Cortlandt Town Center has the four entrances.  This is the second one from the east.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the sidewalks would be – there is a sidewalk coming out by McDonald’s to Route 6?  I’m trying to recall.

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded I believe there is one.  After it gets to the McDonald’s I think you would have to go to the east to that building, not necessarily directly towards the Wal-Mart building.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we asked for a number of sidewalks in our comments.

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded yes, your comments did ask for other additional…

Mr. Robert Foley stated a continuation where you have a pedestrian there starting to want to walk across to the new complex. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and those, I did just recently see your organization of all of the questions on the DEIS that you’re going to have to respond to in the FEIS and a lot of them obviously were your comments which dealt with those pedestrian connections.

Mr. Matt Steinberg stated right, there was a number of pedestrian-related questions.  There’ll be a section that addresses pedestrian circulation and your comments along with the county and other folks will be responded to.
Mr. Robert Foley asked can I ask, the berm you mentioned would be between the closest residential area, the Lucs Lane?  That would be 10 to 12 feet high you said, the berm, and then there would be trees that would be planted there?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded there would be trees planted on the pond.

Mr. Robert Foley stated to further buffer.

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how high would the trees be?  How mature?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded the trees would go in, obviously, it would take a number of years to grow taller but I’d have to look back at the – we showed in the DEIS, I think you have a copy of the DEIS, we showed a section that represents sort of that cross section of showing the trees.

Mr. Robert Foley stated one of the pictures in there, I may have referred to it in my comments or the Planning Board, when you’re going into Lucs Lane from Baker and you look at, I think it’s probably the top end of the fitness building, some members asked if that building could be flipped to the other end of the site.  It seems like you see the building.  Whatever trees are in the drawings or rendering don’t seem to shield it or buffer it and that’s a concern I’m sure you’re going to get that concern from the neighbors there.
Mr. Matt Steinberg stated that kind of comment has come up and we’re looking into that to address that kind of comment.  I believe in the DEIS, obviously we tried to screen.  It’s most important obviously for most people to screen the parking lot and lights from cars and lights from that are mounted on poles and to building and not necessarily to screen an entire view of a building.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because if the fitness center is on the second floor, if it happens, in that building I would assume that would be operating as late as 9:00 or 10:00 at night with people who want to go after work and use the equipment and then you have the lights and you may have sound coming out of it.  That would be a concern if I were to live on Lucs Lane, I don’t but that’s why I was looking particularly in the DEIS, the rendering you had coming up Lucs Lane and then when I heard you point out the 10 to 12 foot berms.  That’s a major concern.  Also, speaking of berming along Route 6, which again were some of our comments, if it could be less impact from a viewing standpoint along Route 6, across that whole front of your property where you’re going to be looking most, except for the one bank building or restaurant, you’re going to be looking mostly at parking spaces.  I would just like to see a further setback and the sidewalks not along the edge of Route 6, somehow a green apron of grass or something.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is that any part of your revised plan?

Mr. Matt Steinberg responded the revised plan, well, as we increase that front planting area, we’re constrained between, obviously, Cortlandt Boulevard and that pond and wetland system.  We have moved the CD district back in our proposal but at the same time we’re trying to respect the existing wetlands and enhance, you can see from the planting along that wetland and the pond is to restore some of that buffer on that pond.  As we add more landscape to the parking areas that just has the effect of pushing everything back and it’s in a conflict with obviously trying to preserve the northern portion of the site.  It’s a balance of…

Mr. Robert Foley stated keep in mind, not only the esthetics of it but the safety angle of people walking along the edge of Route 6 on a curb.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s one thing Bob, I think, it’s hard to see but if you look – I think this line here is the sidewalk and all of the landscaping is behind the sidewalk.  Maybe one possibility is flipping those two things.  Without shifting everything, just move the sidewalk behind the trees. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated because basically when I first looked at the book, that was my first thought, that the sidewalk seemed to be right up against Route 6, that crucial point when cars are moving into a lane to go in to the shopping site and they’re looking there.  It’s just not safe in my view and if that could be improved.  Then I had a question on the sewer.  I thought the county’s memo, in my opinion, I thought was very good, a lot of good thoughts but they do express opinion of course because it’s the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District which is part of the county system.  On the capacity where this would be a high-volume sewer addition, there’s nothing existing there now and also to improve what’s there now on Rt. 6.  How would that affect, or will that be in the FEIS, the impact on the tax payers within the PSSD, the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District or is it treated separately?  In other words, would the capacity increase at the sewer plant and is there a cost factor to any future improvement or expansion if the sewer plant as a result of the volume that would be coming out of your complex?
Mr. Matt Steinberg responded we included a utility report.  We’ve obviously work with Ed and his office.  We believe the Peekskill Sewer District, the plant has capacity.  Any cost for buying into the plant would be borne by the applicant…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words, would the cost that you’re taking on, that would offset any – I’m concerned about tax increases to those within the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked did you submit those comments to…

Mr. Robert Foley responded I think so.

Inaudible.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated they belong in the FEIS.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there are people in the district at the north end that would be concerned.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this whole thing is a little difficult for you guys to do because a lot of those things are DEIS and FEIS comments which you are usually in charge of but now you’re really talking about the building: the layout of the buildings, how the site works, those issues are handled in…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated right, not our issues.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the Chair isn’t back yet but any other comments before we -- Did we agree that we’re going to schedule a public hearing in May?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s staff’s recommendation.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked in May?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’ll move to schedule a public hearing at our May 5th meeting, public hearing for the site plan.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated great.  We will see you on May 5th and if in fact we have revised plans we will make sure they get submitted sufficiently in advance and present with those at the next meeting.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated thank you.

PB 1-11      f.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement dated March 17, 2015 of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 26 lot major subdivision (25 building lots and 1 conservation parcel) of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road, as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. latest revision dated March 17, 2015.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Mr. Chairman, members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz.  We have no presentation.  My understanding is that your board, staff and your outside consultants will now begin reviewing the FEIS.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only interesting thing about that, well not interesting, is that staff consultants have already completed our review.  We’re done.  AKRF is determined it in their opinion to be complete, we just want you to take a look at it and concur with that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I believe we’ve all received that either tonight or at the work session.  We will offer our comments at the next meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated terrific.  We look forward to the completion of the document and moving forward with your board.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Mr. Chair I move that we receive and file the FEIS and that they take it under review.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated thank you.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS: 

PB 2-15      a.
Application of Dominick, Debra and Damaso Santucci for a Lot Line Adjustment between 3 lots located on Travis Avenue, south of Marisa Court and across from White Lion Drive,  as shown on a drawing entitled “Proposed Lot Line Adjustment, Travis Lane” prepared by Hudson Engineering, P.C. dated February 13, 2015. (see prior PB 16-13)

Mr. Dom Santucci stated this is my wife Debra.
Mr. John Klarl stated just for the record Mr. Santucci, we had a discussion before you came up to the mic. tonight and there were three names advertised on our agenda.  Are they three names or two names?

Mr. Dom Santucci responded there’s two names there.  I am known as Dom, Dominick and Domaso and Debra Santucci.

Mr. John Klarl stated so we’re going to amend the application to show two names.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so it’s Dominick and Debra?

Mr. Dom Santucci responded Dominick and Debra.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll remove Domaso from the agenda.  Sorry about that.

Mr. Dom Santucci stated it’s basically a small lot line adjustment that we needed to do partially for the septic and we feel this is the best solution for the three homes I plan to build there.  I’m here to answer any questions.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this was previously before you as we discussed recently.  You had come back a while ago to change a note about the limitation of the bedrooms.  At that point some of the neighbors came out.  There was a lot of discussion.  Now a new orange sign has gone up advertising this hearing.  We haven’t heard from anybody.  It’s a minor shift of a couple of thousand on each side.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked could you walk us through the lot line where it’s moving from just so we all can see it?

Mr. Dom Santucci asked Chris you have it there?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded this is one area down here. 

Mr. Dom Santucci stated that’s my house right next door there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated down here is your existing house.  This is a proposed lot so existing lot line to be adjusted towards lot 11 so a certain amount of land is being taken from lot 11 totaling about 3,500 square feet so both of the size of these lots: your lot which is lot 10 and then proposed lot 11 both change in size, that covers those two.  Then, up here, is…
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated those are the other two lots on the top.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and right here is the other area which is between lot 11 and lot 12.  That is totaling 2,500 square feet and it goes along here.  They’re two long strips.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the reason for the adjustment again?

Mr. Dom Santucci responded first of all, this lot is for my daughter.  She’s going to be living there. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked lot 11?

Mr. Dom Santucci responded this one right here, yes.  The other two lots, they were approved last year.  We went through that lot line adjustment and then we had decided to build on this for her because we couldn’t find anything else.  We needed a little more room between us.  It was getting a little too tight there and the septic was a little problem also.  We needed to shift it down.  So we thought it would be the best solution that taking that little bit of strip from the other piece really didn’t harm anything.  It didn’t affect the locations of the house.  It didn’t affect the septic.  It didn’t affect the drainage.  It just works out a little better.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it is sort of a minimal adjustment.  Any comments from the board?

Mr. Peter Daly responded no, I don’t have any problem with it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we prepare a resolution for the May meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Dom Santucci stated thank you guys.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated thank you.

PB 3-15      b.
Application of Ryan Main, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for a 40,500 sq. ft. commercial building with 209 parking spaces on an approximately 19 acre parcel of property located at 3195 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Ryan Main, LLC” prepared by Timothy Cronin, III, P.E. dated February 18, 2015 (see prior PB 3-09)

Mr. Tim Cronin stated good evening Madame Chairwoman, Tim Cronin from the firm Cronin Engineering.  We prepared the site plan that’s before you tonight.  Along with me is David Steinmetz, the project attorney.  This is a resubmission of a previously approved 56 unit condominium project that was approved I would say 2011 or so.  Market conditions and so-on have made that project not as viable as it was at one time and the owners are now pursuing another option which is a commercial building and you can see what the parking spaces, the commercial layout, access to the Cortlandt Town Center would be our proposal.  Currently, we have right in/right out access and we’re hoping that we’ll be able to incorporate more movements by going into the Cortlandt Town Center and possibly be working with Acadia on the Baker Street modifications that they’re making.  Everybody’s, I’m sure, somewhat familiar with this property having been through the town house or condominium project from me a few years back so we’re just advancing the project and looking to get some feedback from staff.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked this plan here shows the interim solution?  That shows the Beer & Soda place not yet relocated.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded correct, but it seems from the plan I saw earlier, a revision – whatever it is we can tie into whatever the driveway is that will be coming across from Baker Street. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked would anything else change if that were to occur?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded up in that upper right hand corner only.  That would be about the only change where we would tie into the road coming off of Baker Street.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked I guess the Beer & Soda place goes down here?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded actually, that’s the way, if you can recall the Acadia plan, the Baker Street came straight across and the Beer & Soda place was below that or to the east.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you would just do this then?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded more or less.  The Baker Street comes in and sort of swings to the west so we would come in and tie into that roughly at a 90 degree angle.  That would be essentially the only change however we have to slightly realign our road so we tie into the Baker Street extension.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and this is the right in/right out?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded correct, and those are existing driveways.  If this project moves forward, the various access points to Regina Drive would also be eliminated.  It would just be strictly Cortlandt Town Center or Route 6 with nothing off of Regina.  This project here, although Acadia is bringing sewer into the area, this project here, because it’s right now anticipated would be a dry use, we would be able to handle the waste generated on this site with a septic system that would be on the, I believe the southwest corner of the property.  I’m sorry the southeast corner of the property.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked the right in/right out on Route 6, existing one, I know people make a left in coming down the hill but that would be restricted?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, as it is right now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how much total area are we using here?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded are we using with this layout here?  I’m going to approximate about 6 acres.  The building’s 40,000 square feet.  That’s about an acre so maybe five of those or six of those would be about what our disturbance would be. 
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what do you anticipate going into the building?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded dry use, perhaps a furniture store.  You will be somewhat limited.  It’s a large building and I don’t know if there’s many large buildings that would be a dry use, furniture store comes to mind. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked could it be subdivided?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded right now, there’s no specific tenants in mind.  I believe the idea is if we can have one major tenant that would be preferred but right now I don’t even know if they’ve started marketing this yet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does anybody have any additional questions at this point? 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back for a review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Tim Cronin stated thank you very much.

Inaudible.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Inaudible.

Ms. Susan McDonnell  stated Cortlandt Watch sent several letters: one to the Planning Board and one addressed to the Planning Board and the town board.  I’m not going to read them all but the essence of what we had to say was that there is going to be this incredible amount of development on a one-mile road, one-mile piece of Route 6.  Trucks coming and going and all of these different changes happening and I really think that they all need to be done together not as – I know it’s normally not your habit to say “okay, well we’ll take all of this at one time.”  You take one piece, and you do another piece, and you do another piece, and I really think to the benefit of all the people in the town as well as our sanity that you look at these and figure out how they can be done so as with the least amount of interruption and flow.  Route 6, I’ve lived here 47 years and I can’t imagine a day that I can’t go up-and-down Route 6.  It’s going to be a nightmare, and this was primarily our point.  We agreed with Westchester county that there are a number of issues having to do with things that are not in plans already developed by the Town of Cortlandt and I think those need to be addressed too but really our very biggest concern is the fact that all of these need to be looked at as one piece as opposed to separate and individual pieces.  I was glad to see that these major pieces were on the agenda tonight.  Thank you.


*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair, it’s 10 o’clock even, I move that we adjourn.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015
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